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Rob - example of conservation discontinuing? Refrigeration buy back program.

Risk to public seen as not helping with conservation? Will investing 375m over three years. Different
programs. Haven't lost focus on conservation.

Tom - electric cars and incentives. What's your load forecast on electric vehicles? 6 or 7 thousand. Could
increase to 40 or 50 over 20 years.

Vaughn - charts deferred accounts for original and dark blue revised (slide 17) at front end getting worse
every year. Hoping to make up at the end. On regulatory accounts

Rates smoothing account, sadjustments had to be made in future years with projects we could reschdule.
On regulatory accounts, unknowns

Trajectories built into rate smoothing plan. Meant to capture variances.

Dirk - job loses? No layoff program to meet these targets.

Les - two more years of dividend? Three more years.

Keith - site ¢, committed number for contratcs? 4.1 billion committed.

Almost half project committed? Yes.

Federal permit, fed signed off? Two. 1) fisheries act authorization.

How many more? Pretty much done.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the TELUS network.
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& BCHydro CONFIDENTIAL
Power smart

Event: Background briefing for RRA filing

Contacts: Simi Heer, Media Relations, BC Hydro 604-375-2746
Mora Scott, Media Relations, BC Hydro 604-880-3863

Date: Thursday, July 28

Time: 1 p.m.

Location: Galiano Room, Hotel Grand Pacific
463 Belleville Street, Victoria, B.C.

Security:  Hotel security available; event deemed low risk (invite only); not advertised in lobby

Speakers: Jessica McDonald, President & CEO
Chris O'Riley, Deputy CEO
Cheryl Yaremko, Executive Vice-President Finance and CFO

Media: Legislative reporters (briefing)
News media province wide (news release)

Legislative reporters (invited):

o Keith Baldrey, Global TV
Bhinder Sajan, CTV
Tom Fletcher, Black Press
Dirk Meissner, Canadian Press
Rob Shaw, Vancouver Sun
Vaughn Palmer, Vancouver Sun
Richard Zussman, CBC BC
Andrew McLeod, The Tyee
Justine Hunter, Globe & Mail
Les Leyne, Victoria Times Colonist
Sophie Rousseau, Radio Canada
Mike Smyth, The Province
Lindsay Kines, Victoria Times Colonist
Mary Griffin, CHEK TV

O o0 o0 0o o0 0o 0o o0 00 o

Format

¢ In-person technical briefing followed by facilitated Q&A with Jessica with support from Chris
& Cheryl.

e Province-wide rollout of media material followed by one-on-one interviews by Jessica (if
requested)
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Set-up

Holding area
e Space for speakers (Saltspring room) is located directly next to presentation room (available
first thing in the morning)

Presentation area

e Smaller, intimate room

o Table at front for all speakers with classroom style set up for reporters (two people per table)
e 70-inch LED screen to display PowerPoint to the right of the speaker table

* No microphones, speakers or telephone lines

Media tactics

e Media calls/invites Tuesday
¢ Presentation & speaking notes Thursday
e News release Thursday
e Social media (news release, facts) Thursday
¢ Media take away material: news release, presentation Thursday
Timeline
Technical briefing
11 a.m. set up of Galiano room Simi, Mora
12:00 p.m. pre-brief, practice in Saltspring room | Jessica, Chris O, Cheryl, Chris S.
12:45 p.m. media arrive
12:55 p.m. speakers take their seats Jessica, Chris O, Cheryl
1 p.m. briefing begins Jessica, Chris O, Cheryl, Simi
1:20 p.m. Q&A Jessica, Chris O, Cheryl, Simi

. event concludes; . .
1:35 p.m. speakers to holding area Jessica, Chris O, Cheryl

2 p.m. RRA filed & posted to .com (TBC) Regulatory, Leela
news release distributed; .

2 p.m. social media push Kevin, Leela

2:30 - 3p.m. | media interviews Jessica

Announcement: Rates

2
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Protecting B.C.’s energy

advantage
Affordable, reliable, clean

é555§

A,
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BC Hydro’s system

We have a large and complex system serving 95% of the
province’s population and 4 million customers.

::;‘_—::: mﬂ 11111
£ (=) G
1 mi"ion 30 hydroelectric over 300
utility poles e substations

.
4 million customers
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325,000

individual transformers

A network of over

77,000 kms
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BC Hydro today

BC Hydro is here to deliver affordable, reliable,
clean electricity to our customers, safely.

{ BCHydro
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Affordable, reliable, clean

Our rates are among the lowest in North America.

An average residential customer pays
$203 each month for their phone, TV,
and internet services, compared to
$91 per month on electricity.

*based on 830 kWh/month

4 — — ¢ BCHydro
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Affordable, reliable, clean

Adjusting for inflation, electricity costs about the same today as
it did back in 1976.

$120

$100

$80

$60

$40

$20

Monthly bill adjusted for inflation in
2016 dollars (based on 1,000 kWh)

F1975

|
F1980

| | | | I | |
F1985 F1990 F1995 F2000 F2005 F2010 F2015

Fiscal year (year ending March 31)

F2020

Inflation-adjusted average
monthly residential bills

1976 $104.55
2016 $107.05
< BCHydro
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Affordable, reliable, clean
B.C.’s power supply is more reliable than the Canadian average.

8

2015

Average number of power
Interruptions, per year

. Canada

B cc

Duration, In hours
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Affordable, reliable, clean

Last year, 98% of the electricity generated in B.C. was from
clean or renewable sources.

|

) o
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We’re doing everything
we can to keep rates
low for our customers

- BC Hydro
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Warm winter reduced energy sales

SKki hills in Alberta, B.C. suffering from unusually warm
weather

Mountain resorts across Western Canada are struggling to provide good snow for skiers, snowboarders
By Kyle Bak e Pivel Feb 17. 2015 7-00 PMET | =t Undated- Feb 18, 2015 10-33 AMET

CBC News osted: Feb 17. 2015 00 PME | Last Updated: Feb

IN DEPTH | El Nino forecasts warm winter for West Coast

A strong El Nifio means warmer than normal trend continues — but what does that mean for skiers?

By Johanna Wagstaffe, CBC News Posted: Oct 22, 2015 1:10 PM PT Last Updated: Oct 24, 2015 1:50 PM PT

Drought forces Howe Sound pulp mill to close one
operation in hopes of saving two others

THE CANADIAN PRESS JULY 24 2015 - . -
Warm winter causes headaches for
seasonal businesses
JACOB SEREERIN
Special to The Globe and Mail
o Published Monday, Feb. 29, 2016 5:00AM EST < BC Hydro
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Commodity prices reduced forecasts

Natural Gas Mining Pulp & Paper
| [ 2o | 0w [xcese W00 | 2ou | 0w |xowee 0 pZonl206 L ichnce
T pug 660 610 P
1 ¥ 24 §48%
Thermo-
"{‘:‘):';E' 550 380 §
LNG
) . 8.4 § 48% $39%

Paper,
newsprint 640 520 9
s $19%

Forecasting approximately $3.5 billion (or 7%)

less revenue over the duration of the 10 Year 00 20 $7%
Rates Plan compared to the assumptions at the
time the plan was announced in 2013.
<> BCHydro
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Staying on track

By continuing to find operational savings that are reinvested in
priority areas.

v" This year, we've identified a further $33 million in cost reductions.

v" We’ve limited base operating cost increases to an average of only 1.2% per year for
2017 10 2019.

By locking in low interest rates.

v" We've put in place a debt management strategy to lock in low interest rates, which we

expect will achieve approximately $45 million in savings over the next three years.

11 ¢ BCHydro
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Staying on track

By working hard to manage our costs.

v We've replaced contractors with internal staff where it reduces costs, generating an

overall capital savings of $20 million over the next three years.

v We've prioritized our capital spending, reducing planned expenditures by about

$380 million over the next 3 years.

v" We’ve updated our conservation programs, reducing the average program cost to
$22 per megawatt hour.

v Over the past 5 years, we’ve completed 563 capital projects at a total cost of $6.48
billion which is about $12 million under budget overall.

<> BCHydro
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Staying on track

By optimizing our energy resources.

v We’'re renewing contracts with independent power producers at prices less than
what they are currently paid, recognizing that those producers have typically

recovered most of their capital costs over their original contract terms.

v" We’re reviewing the Standing Offer Program to reflect the declining cost of new
power technology and to better meet system needs.

13 ¢ BCHydro
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Staying on track

By spending money where it matters most.

- Over the next three years, we’re re-deploying operational savings in the following
priority areas:

v’ Safety

Customer service
Storm response
Maintenance

Capital project planning

< BCHydro
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2013 10 Year
Rates Plan update

We’re on track to meet the targets in the 2013
10 Year Rates Plan, while making investments
to safely provide reliable, clean electricity to
our customers.

{ BCHydro
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10 Year Rates Plan

« The plan targets average rate increases of 2.6% in the last 5 years:

Targets
SR SN T, CEEEE (to be set by the BC Utilities Commission)
Year F2015 F2016  F2017 F2018 F2019 F2020 F2021 F2022 F2023 F2024

Increase 9% 6% 4% 3.5% 3% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6%

- This includes full recovery of the balance in the Rate Smoothing Account (which shifts
costs from earlier years to later years of the 10 Year Rates Plan):

Rate Smoothing Account — (Additions) / Recoveries in millions

Year F2015 F2016 F2017 F2018 F2019 F2020 F2021 F2022 F2023 F2024 Total
Original Forecast ~ (181) (158) (333) (268) (70) (78) 13 161 354 560 O
Latest Forecast  (166) (121) (210) (286) (299) (408) (99) 304 553 733 0

< BCHydro
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Rate Smoothing Account balance is on
track to reach zero by 2024
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5 $1600
E  $1400
L
£
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< ¢600

$400

| .

5 o

F2015 F2016 F2017 F2018 F2019 F2020 F2021 F2022 F2023 F2024
Fiscal year (year ending March 31)

Original 10 Year Rates Plan forecast Current forecast <> BCHydro
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We’re paying down regulatory accounts
by almost 40% by 2024

$6
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E
® %4
£
g
£
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<
$1
o

F2015 F2016 F2017 F2018 F2019 F2020 F2021 F2022 F2023 F2024
Fiscal year (year ending March 31)

< BCHydro
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Rate smoothing
regulatory account balance
(In blllion dollars)

Total regulatory
account balance
(In blllion dollars)

19

1.00

F16

125

Original 10 Year Rates Plan forecast

= 2014 forecast

F19

= Current forecast

1.25

075

0.50

0.25

e Current forecast

F24

1
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A 4% rate increase means...

I e
H\ llilillllill_i.ﬁlll
. o o
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o o
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Peed [N Fliin
$4.65 $1.37 $2.88
extra per month extra per month extra per month
for a familly of four for a single person for a couple
living In a single-family Iiving In an apartment. living In a townhouse.

detached home.
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Investing in our system
to keep it reliable and
clean

As our province grows, further investment is needed to meet growing
demand and ensure reliable power for years to come.

We are investing over $2 billion per year to upgrade aging assets and
build new infrastructure.

{ BCHydro

Poswsr smare



Residential bill increases and capital expenditures (1973 to 2018)
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100,000+ person years of employment

More than
50,000

. Generation

. Transmission & distribution almost
30,000
Properties, fleet &
other groups
. Technology
More than almost
Site C 3,500 3,500
===
Person years of employment
<> BCHydro
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Over 20 new clean power projects will be

complete in the next three years

Independent Power Producers provide about 25% of supply.

27

Soptimus Crack

Wind Farm
MAcoss Laks
Wina Project

Contiex Mackanzie—
Combined Haat and Power Projact

N

MWMa-\_'

Mim&winﬂy\.
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Meeting long-term
growth

The 2013 Integrated Resource Plan forecasted demand growth of 40% over
the next 20 years, before LNG.

With the shift in commodity markets since 2013, BC Hydro is now
forecasting growth of 34% before LNG and 39% with LNG.

This means an average growth rate of 1.4% per year, after conservation.

{ BCHydro
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Energy demand since 2002

GWh

29
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53,000
52,000
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50,000
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F2001 F2002 F2003 F2004 F2005 F2006 F2007 F2008 F2008 F2010 F2011 F2012 F2013 F2014 F2015* F2016*

Fiscal year (ending March 31)

E 1 woath g 4 and with

*F2015 and F2016 are not weather-adjusted

g
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GWh

Demand is growing - residential

We continue to forecast significant long-term growth for all
customer sectors.

90,000 « B.C.’s population is

80,000 forecast to grow by over 1
70,000 —_—

£0.000 million people to 5.8

50.000 million by 2035.

40,000 o .

30,000 * Declining trend in

20,000 residential use per account

10,000
0

due to gains in appliance
efficiency has softened
sales.

F17
F18
F19
F20
F21
F22
Fa23
F24
Fa25
F26
F27
F28
F29
F30
F31
F32
F33
F34
F35
F36

m Residential m Commercial ® Industrial
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GWh

Demand is growing - commercial

We continue to forecast significant long-term growth for all
customer sectors.

90,000 - B.C.'s GDP growth is

igggg forecast at a lower rate than

50,000 in 2013 but still expected to
’ lead the country at 2.3% on

50,000
40,000 average, from 2017 to 2019.

30,000
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10,000
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GWh

Demand is growing - industrial

We continue to forecast significant long-term growth for all
customer sectors.

90,000
80,000
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F17
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mLNG
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F24
Fa25
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F27
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m Commercial
m Other

F30

F31
F32
F33
F34
F35

® [ndustrial
wLosses

F36

Declining commodity
prices have led to a lower
forecast rate of industrial
load growth.

Average annual year over
year industrial load
growth over the next 20
years is about 1.3% (with
LNG).
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GWh

Demand is growing - LNG

We continue to forecast significant long-term growth for all
customer sectors.

90,000
80,000
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mLNG
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m Other

® Industrial
wLosses

Fortis Tilbury, LNG
Canada and Woodfibre
LNG have confirmed
their intent to take
service from BC Hydro.

Delays to final
investment decisions
have pushed out
in-service dates.
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GWh

Demand is growing

We continue to forecast significant long-term growth for all
customer sectors.

90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
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Energy vs. Capacity

35
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«x  Energy
soo00 | Without any new resources
By 2036, B.C.
70,000 would have an
enerqgy suppl
e gy supply
2 gap of 23,000
-E; 50,000 GWh -
H equivalent to
g 000 the power
& 30,000 nee(_js_ of over
2 million
20,000 homes.
10,000
0
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Energy - Operating Energy (GWh/yr)
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Energy

With planned new resources
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Capacity (net of reserves)
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Capacity (net of reserves)
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Capacity

With planned new resources
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Operating Energy (GWh/yr)

:

Without Site C, British Columbia would have a capacity
deficit of over 950 MW (8%) and an energy deficit of over
1,100 GWh (2%) in 10 years

This is equivalent to the power needs of 100,000 homes
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m
s Site C == Future SOP & BC Hydro
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In 2027, without Site C and Revelstoke 6, British
Columbia would have a capacity deficit of over 1,100 MW

(9%)
1000 CAPACITY
E‘ 13,000
<
2
E 12,000
S
E 11,000
g 10,000
8 ©
3 9,000
| F2027 - With Site C& Rev6  F2027 - Without Site C
& Without Rev 6
I Heritage Hydro @ Existing IPPs
I Site C = Future SOP P
41 == Renewed IPPs C—JRevelstoke Unit 6 wBC Hydro
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Investing in
conservation

Since 2003, BC Hydro has invested $1.3 billion in conservation (an
average of $100 million per year).

Our conservation programs achieved cumulative energy savings of
5,091 gigawatt hours from 2008 to 2016 — that’s equal to the amount of
power that will be produced by Site C.

{ BCHydro
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Conservation investment 1989 to 2019
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Our conservation plan
On track to exceed the C/ean Energy Act target.

v Invest $375 million over the next three years, including $7.8 million on low
income programs.

v Re-focus programs, adjust and discontinue programs that are not cost
effective, reducing average cost to $22 per megawatt hour.

v Use new tools, information and technologies to help customers make
smart choices about energy consumption.

v" Retain and expand programs that align with customer and system needs.

< BCHydro
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Frankl, Dave MEM:EX

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

s12513

Bill

Bennett, Bill MEM:EX

Wednesday, July 20, 2016 3:59 PM
Chris.Sandve@bchydro.com

Wallace-Deering, Eric MEM:EX

RRA Chapters 1, 3, 4_MEM Briefing

RRA Chapters 1, 3, 4_MEM Briefing.pdf; ATT00001.txt

Annotations in the attached document can be seen with Acrobat Reader on the computer. To view annotations on iOS
device, use compatible app like PDF Expert.
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Electricity Purchase Agreements that reached commercial operations (COD) in F2016
or expected to reach COD in F17 — F19
Call Process Project Location
2006 Call Cranberry Creek Power Revelstoke
Mclintosh Creek Waterpower Project McBride
SunMine Kimberly
Tolko Kelowna Cogeneration Kelowna
Wedgemount Creek IPP Whistler
. Shinish Creek Wind Farm Summerland
C2)(f}f1e(r} g:ig?;{f Pennask Wind Farm Westbank
Septimus Creek Wind Farm Taylor
Moose Lake Wind Project Tumbler Ridge
Winchie Creek Hydro Ucluelet
Hunter Creek Run-of-River Hope
Clemina Creek Hydro Valemont
Castle Creek (formerly Benjamin Creek) McBride
Big Silver - Shovel Creek Harrison Hot Springs
Boulder Creek Pemberton
Box Canyon Port Mellon
Bremner - Trio Harrison Hot Springs
Ramonas - CC Creek - Chickwat Sechelt
2010 Cal Culliton Creek Squamish
Dasque - Middle Terrace
Meikle Wind Tumbler Ridge
Tretheway Creek Mission
Upper Lillooet River Pemberton
Jimmie Creek (Upper Toba Valley) Powell River
Fort St. James Green Energy Fort St. James
2010 Bio Energy Il |Merritt Green Energy Merritt
Chetwynd Biomass Chetwynd
Conifex Green Energy Mackenzie
Negotiated McLymont Creek Stewart
Electricity Purchase |Houweling Nurseries (Delta) Cogeneration Delta
Agreement Conifex Mackenzie - Combined Heat and Power Project Mackefzif4 of 159 EGM-2016-63060
Quesnel River Pulp Quesnel
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For more information on BC Hydro contact:

333 Dunsmuir Street

Vancouver, BC

V6B 5R3

Lower Mainland
604 BCHYDRO

(604 224 9376)

Outside Lower Mainland
1 800 BCHYDRO

(1 800 224 9376)

bchydro.com

BC Hydro’s Annual Service Plan Report can be found online at:
http://www.bchydro.com/about/accountability _reports/financial_reports/annual_reports.html
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Chair, Board of Directors Accountability Statement

' BC Hydro is a provincial Crown Corporation, owned by the people of British
Columbia. We operate an integrated system of generation, transmission and

- distribution infrastructure to deliver reliable, affordable and clean electricity
to our four million customers, safely. As an organization, we have a huge
impact on the lives of the people of British Columbia and we are working

- together to uphold this responsibility and become the most trusted, innovative

utility company in North America - smart about power in all we do.

The 2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report outlines BC Hydro’s performance on the strategies and
measures set out in our 2015/16 — 2017/18 Service Plan. It details how we are meeting the
objectives in the Government Mandate Letter and aligning with the Taxpayer Accountability
Principles.

This report was prepared under the Board’s direction in accordance with the Budget
Transparency and Accountability Act and the B.C. Reporting Principles. The Board and
Management are accountable for the contents of the report, including what has been included and
how it has been reported.

The information presented reflects the actual performance of BC Hydro for the year ended
March 31, 2016, in relation to the 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service Plan. The Board is responsible for
ensuring internal controls are in place to measure information and report accurately and in a
timely fashion.

All significant assumptions, policy decisions, events and identified risks, as of March 31, 2016
have been considered in preparing the report. The report contains estimates and interpretive
information that represent the best judgment of management. Any changes in mandate direction,
goals, strategies, measures or targets made since the 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service Plan was
released and any significant limitations in the reliability of the information are identified in the
report.

The BC Hydro 2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report compares the corporation’s actual results to
the expected results identified in the 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service Plan. [ am accountable for those
results as reported.

,\\\u\|..
r\&r NS - = —>
W.J. Brad Bennett, O.B.C.
Chair, Board of Directors
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Chair, Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer Letter

On behalf of the Board of Directors and all BC Hydro employees, we are pleased to submit
BC Hydro’s Annual Service Plan Report for the year ending March 31, 2016.

This past year we began construction on the Site C Clean Energy project which is one of the
largest infrastructure projects ever undertaken in British Columbia. Construction is well
underway and the job fairs we have held in the surrounding communities have attracted
thousands of people. We are investing $2.3 billion per year for the next 10 years to maintain and
upgrade our aging assets as well as develop new power infrastructure to ensure we reliably meet
our customer’s current and future electricity needs. We have made advancements in the services
we provide to our customers and this will continue to be a focus for us in the coming year.

In January 2016, BC Hydro was named the most influential brand in B.C. for 2015 by B.C.
Business Magazine. With this honour comes the responsibility to maintain the trust and respect
of our customers and stakeholders. While fluctuating commodity prices and other economic
shifts have created challenges, we are on target to meet the 10 Year Rates Plan set out by
government to help keep rates low and predictable for our customers as a result of prudent
actions to reduce costs and become a more focused organization.

BC Hydro works closely with the Ministry of Energy and Mines to ensure alignment with
government policy expectations through regular meetings and updates. These are held between
the Executive, the Minister and his staff and the Board Chair, as appropriate, to discuss progress
on achievement of the 10 Year Rates Plan and actions identified in the Government Mandate
Letter (highlights in Appendix C: Crown Corporations Mandate and Actions Summary). Regular
updates are provided to the Board of Directors each quarter through a Taxpayer Accountability
Report which documents actions to support the Taxpayer Accountability Principles. With respect
to organizational governance and shareholder engagement, the development and responsibilities
of Directors and the Executive are outlined in Appendix B: Additional Information.

We’re proud of this year’s accomplishments. We will continue to work together to deliver
reliable, affordable and clean electricity to our customers, and to ensure that everyone gets home
safely every day.

\\.l\.llllﬁlv
y L o A
W.J. BradBennett, OB.C. Jessica McDonald
Chair, Board of Directors President and Chief Executive Officer
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Purpose of the Organization

BC Hydro’s mission is to provide our customers with reliable, affordable and clean electricity
throughout British Columbia, safely. We are one of the largest energy suppliers in Canada,
generating and delivering electricity to 95 per cent of the population of British Columbia. We
operate an integrated system backed by 30 hydroelectric and two thermal generating stations as
well as79,000 kilometres of transmission and distribution lines. We are proud of our partnership
with the independent power sector in British Columbia which operates over 100 projects across
the province including biomass, hydro, wind, solar and more.

As a provincial Crown corporation, the owner and sole shareholder of BC Hydro is the Province
of British Columbia. BC Hydro reports to the B.C. Government through the Minister of Energy
and Mines and the Government’s expectations are expressed through the following legislation,
policy and instructions:

The Hydro and Power Authority Act

e The Utilities Commission Act

o The BC Hydro Public Power Legacy and Heritage Contract Act

e The Province’s 2007 BC Energy Plan

e The 2010 Clean Energy Act (CEA)

The Hydro and Power Authority Act gives BC Hydro its mandate to generate, manufacture,
conserve, supply, acquire, and dispose of power and related products.

Powerex Corp. (Powerex) and Powertech Labs Inc. (Powertech) are two wholly-owned
subsidiaries of BC Hydro. Powerex is a key participant in energy markets across North America,
buying and selling wholesale power, renewable and low-carbon energy and products, natural gas,
ancillary services, and financial energy products. Powertech is internationally recognized for
providing research and development, testing, technical services, and advanced technology
services to clients around the world, including BC Hydro. For more information on Powerex,
Powertech, or other active and inactive subsidiaries, see Appendix A: Subsidiaries and
Operating Segments.

Strategic Direction and Context

British Columbia has the third lowest electricity rates in North America for residential
customers, the fourth lowest for commercial customers and the fifth lowest for industrial
customers. The 10 Year Rates Plan sets out a framework to keep rates as low as possible while
BC Hydro makes investments in aging assets and new infrastructure to modernize the province’s
electricity system and support British Columbia's growing population and economy.

BC Hydro continues to forecast long-term load growth across all customer classes. While our
customer base is growing, we also have an aging electricity system which was largely built in the
1960s, 1970s and 1980s and needs to be rebuilt and upgraded to meet current and future needs.
That’s why, to maintain our system’s reliability and support the growth of the province over the
next decade, BC Hydro is investing an average of $2.3 billion each year on capital projects.
From fiscal 2012-2016, BC Hydro completed 563 capital projects at a total cost of $6.48 billion
which is 0.18 percent under budget overall.

2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report 6
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BC Hydro is managing its capital portfolio to emphasize cost consciousness, respect the
environment and communities in which we work, and strengthen our relationships with First
Nations to ensure economic and social benefits for ratepayers. Over the next decade, BC Hydro’s
capital projects are expected to generate a total provincial economic impact of $13 billion and
create 110,000 person-years of employment'. During 2015/16, capital additions were $2.8 billion
and several notable projects were completed including:

e Two new units, adding 1,000 megawatts of capacity, at the Mica Generating Station,

e The Interior to Lower Mainland Transmission project, a 247 kilometre, 500 kilovolt line,
that will reliably deliver power from the Peace and Columbia systems to customers in our
major load centers,

e The Gordon M. Shrum Units 1-5 Turbine Replacement project to upgrade 1960s-era
turbines at BC’s largest generating station,

e The completion of our Smart Metering program to modernize our 1950s-era grid and
provide customers with the information they need to make smart energy choices; and

e The new Dawson Creek/Chetwynd Area Transmission Project which will increase
capacity in the region to provide oil and gas producers with reliable, clean power, support
economic development and reduce provincial greenhouse gas emissions.

BC Hydro’s Site C Clean Energy Project will help meet the future electricity needs of British
Columbia’s growing population and economy. Site preparation and construction has commenced
with vegetation clearing, building of access roads, a construction bridge, and worker
accommodations. Procurement activities have resulted in the award of many small and large
contracts with commitments totaling approximately $3.8 billion as at March 31, 2016.
Thousands of people have attended Site C job fairs and the number of on-site workers peaked at
691 this past year, of which 492 were from British Columbia. Specific to aboriginal business
opportunities and employment, in fiscal 2016 $90 million in procurement commitments have
been made to First Nations companies, and joint ventures including First Nations companies, and
more than 50 First Nations employees and contractors are working on the project.

BC Hydro renewed its customer service strategy this past year with the goal of making it easier
for customers to do business with us. This has prompted process improvements and training
including simplifying bills, and sharing information in a relevant and timely way. BC Hydro
also continues to help customers manage their electricity consumption through our conservation
and energy management programs and through new tools such as smart meters, which provide
customers with the information they need to make smart energy choices.

At BC Hydro, we are constantly striving to keep rates affordable and predictable for our
customers, to support the achievement of the 10 Year Rates Plan and protect British Columbia’s
competitive advantage of having amongst the lowest electricity rates in North America. A key
component of these efforts is the prudent management of our operating costs. In 2015/16, we
initiated a workforce optimization program to convert external contractors to internal staff in
cases where it reduces costs or improves outcomes, and continued our Work Smart program, an
employee-led program to identify process efficiencies across the business. As part of that
program, our Transmission, Distribution and Customer Service business group identified 16

! Economic Impact Assessment of BC Hydro's 10-Year Capital Plan. Deetken Group September 2015.
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projects ranging from trouble response process improvements to vegetation management tools
implementation. We also conducted a review of our conservation programs and identified
opportunities to reduce costs and take advantage of innovative technologies, such as smart
meters, to better respond to customer and system needs. The savings from these types of
initiatives over the next few years will continue to help fund important investments in priority
areas like customer service, safety, maintenance and capital project planning.

This past year, BC Hydro developed a debt management strategy and one component, a Debt
Management Regulatory Account, was approved by the BC Utilities Commission (Commission),
which will lock-in low long-term interest rates to protect customers from the risk of rising
interest rates. We filed our first Rate Design Application since 2007, which reflects extensive
stakeholder and customer feedback on our current rate designs, and on potential rate design
options. We also filed and received approval for an interim Revenue Requirements Application
with the Commission, requesting a four percent rate increase for fiscal 2017, in alignment with
the 10 Year Rates Plan. After updating our forecasts to account for recent events in the mining
and liquefied natural gas sectors, BC Hydro will file a full Revenue Requirements Application in
July 2016, consistent with the rate caps set out in the 10 Year Rates Plan.

In 2015/16, domestic revenues before regulatory transfers were lower than planned due to the
loss of large industrial load related to declining market conditions including low commodity
prices, and a warmer than normal winter affecting residential customers. BC Hydro has
responded to these events through prudent management of its operating and capital expenditures
to maintain low rates for its customers. In addition, we are implementing the Province’s direction
to allow eligible mining customers, under certain circumstances, to postpone payment of their
electricity bills with deferred bill amounts to be repaid in full, with interest, as commodity prices
recover.

Last August, we experienced the largest single day outage event in our history. Approximately
700,000 Lower Mainland and Vancouver Island customers were without power due to a severe
windstorm. Despite the amount of damage and number of customers left without power,

BC Hydro employees and our contractors performed a commendable job restoring power. The
vast majority of customers were restored to service within 48 hours, and all customers were
restored within five days. This required a massive effort including the replacement of 200 power
poles, 500 broken cross-arms on pole tops, 10,000 meters of wire and more than 1,200 pieces of
electrical equipment, as well as the repair of 25 transmission circuits. Compared with previous
large-scale restoration efforts, this was the safest, fastest and most cost-effective large scale
restoration on record. Delivering electricity safely is critical to our workers and the public,
especially during storm events and importantly, no safety incidents occurred during this service
restoration. In 2015/16, BC Hydro had no fatalities or serious injuries and our goal continues to
be that, every day, all workers go home safe.

Report on Performance

BC Hydro continues to focus on achieving the objectives outlined in the Government Mandate
Letter and aligning with the Taxpayer Accountability Principles. For specific details on
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fulfillment of the Government Mandate Letter, please refer to Appendix C: Crown Corporations
Mandate and Action Summary.

Under the Taxpayer Accountability Principles, BC Hydro has implemented its action plan with
regular communications between the CEO, Board Chair, the Minister and Deputy Minister;
quarterly reporting to the Board of Directors; and, alignment of its Service Plan and Annual
Service Plan Report with the spirit and intent of the Taxpayer Accountability Principles.
Examples of specific outcomes this year include:

e Implementing the Work Smart process improvement program to identify efficiencies and
service enhancements in areas like vegetation management, asbestos management and
our customer build program where we work with developers in the design and
construction of residential developments,

* Implementing the Province’s compensation guidelines for public sector employees,

e Being ranked the #1 employer in Canada in an independent survey by Forbes,

e Initiating a process to optimize the Standing Offer Program by identifying ways to better
reflect future system needs and considering technological improvements that have led to
declining development costs,

e Implementing a new customer strategy to improve service outcomes; and

e Developing BC Hydro’s Statement of Aboriginal Principles to guide our relationships
with First Nations.

BC Hydro’s values align with the Taxpayer Accountability Principles and employees will
continue to identify opportunities that reflect Cost Consciousness, Accountability, Appropriate
Compensation, Service, Respect, and Integrity across our business.

Goals, Strategies, Measures and Targets

In 2015/16, BC Hydro updated its mission: To provide our customers with reliable, affordable,
clean electricity throughout B.C., safely. We have continued to implement our strategies to
achieve our six goals and 21 performance measures as set out in the 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service
Plan; however, these have since been updated to better align with our new mission. The new
goals and performance measures are reflected in our new Service Plan for 2016/17 - 2018/19.
The goals and measures below track our progress on delivering the identified priorities for
2015/16. BC Hydro management is responsible for measuring performance against targets, and
results are reported to the Board on a quarterly basis and publicly in the Annual Service Plan
Report. The BC Hydro 2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report compares the corporation’s 2015/16
actual results to the expected results in the 2015/16 - 2017/18 Service Plan. The fiscal 2017 and
fiscal 2018 targets presented below are based on the recent 2016/17 - 2018/19 Service Plan.

Goal 1: Safely Keep The Lights On

Safely and reliably meet the electricity needs of our customers through integrated planning and
technology, and in the operation, maintenance and advancement of our system.

2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report 9
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Strategies
Safety

BC Hydro is implementing its five year safety strategy, and in 2015/16, the following was
achieved:
e Trained and assessed the competency of our powerline technicians and electricians
associated with BC Hydro’s Life Saving Rules. This work was initiated this year and
will be completed in 2016/17.
e Implemented an improved process to identify critical hazards and ensure multiple
safeguards are in place to protect workers.
e Continued work to reduce hazards associated with arc flash, working in confined spaces
and with asbestos.
e Implemented a knife cut reduction program by distributing new cutting tools and cut
resistant gloves to our employees.
¢ Made significant progress developing our contractor safety management program, field
access to safety information and safety management system improvements.
e Used safety data analytics to assess the safety performance across the organization to
identify areas for improvement, and to establish safety priorities and initiatives.
Reliability
BC Hydro continues to ensure the reliability of the system by effectively implementing capital
and maintenance programs to manage overall asset health:
e This past year, the focused vegetation management program helped to manage the
frequency of outages caused by tree contacts.
e Continued deployment of the automatic recloser program has improved customer
interruption impact by reducing sustained outages.
e The longer term implementation of the distribution automation strategy through smart
meters and other technologies help to improve system flexibility in outage management.
e BC Hydro continues to effectively manage dam safety issues and risks and is focused on
implementing the action plan that was identified through a probabilistic seismic hazard
analysis completed in 2014/15. This plan calls for $1.9 billion in investment over the next
10 years in dam safety and seismic upgrades. This work is also driving a similar analysis
of resiliency for our transmission and distribution system assets and informs our
comprehensive emergency management and security plans.

w.n-.?nigno gamm__:.aw 1-8

Zero Fatality & Serious Injury’

[Loss of life or the injury has resulted in a 2’ 0 1* 0 0 0 0
permanent disability]
Severity”

[Number of calendar days lost due to injury per | 45.1° | 289 | 233 25.0 30.0 N/A® | N/A®
200,000 hours worked]
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Lost Time Injury Frequency’

[Number of employee injury incidents resulting 1.0 117 1 1.1 1.0 0

in lost time (beyond the day of the injury) per ' ’ 0 10 ) ' 9
200,000 hours worked]

CAIDI (duration)®

[customer average interruption duration index- 2.12 2.30 2.36 2.30 2.02 N/A® N/AS

hours per interrupted customer]

SAIDI (duration)®

[system average interruption duration index —
total outage duration (in hours) experienced by 2.73 3.59° 3.07 3.22 3.01 3.22 3.20
an average customer in a year]
(excluding major events)

SAIFI (frequency)”
[system average interruption frequency index -

number of sustained interruptions per year] he? 1% 130 140 148 146 123
(excluding major events)

CEMI-4 (%)’

[customer experienced multiple interruptions - 9.10 12.35 9.23 11.00 12.60 N/A® N/A®
four or more outages]

Winter Generation Availability (%) 98.1 96.8 97.4 96.4 96.5 N/A® N/A®

" Performance Measure descriptions, rationale, data source information and benchmarking is available online at www behydro.com/performance.

* BC Hydro’s safety performance measures do not include contractor or public safety injuries or fatalities.

* Neither of the incidents in fiscal 2013 resulted in a fatality.

* The fiscal 2015 results reflect a serious injury from an electrical contact that occurred in November 2014,

* The fiscal 2013 Severity result of 45.1 is unusually high compared to other years. Over 40 per cent of the result is due to five injuries, each of which had
considerable time loss (180 days or more). Traditionally, we only experience one or two injuries in a year resulting in this amount of time loss.

“This measure was removed from the 2016/17 — 2018/19 Service Plan; therefore, targets are not included.

? Prior years® results have been calculated based on the latest available data and may be different than previously stated.

*Annual targets are based on a number of factors including long-term historic reliability trending, current year performance, previous years’ investments
and future years’ investment plans.

*Actual 2013/14 actuals were updated based upon revised data and may be different than previously stated.

Note: Reliability targets are based on specific values, however performance within 10 per cent is considered acceptable given the wide range of variations
in weather patterns and uncontrollable elements that can significantly disrupt the electrical system. BC Hydro measures reliability under normal
circumstances, because major events are not predictable and largely uncontrollable. The reliability measures are therefore based on data that excludes
major events. BC Hydro reviews performance during major events and takes the performance into consideration in reliability improvement initiatives.

Discussion

e In2015/16, BC Hydro had no fatalities or serious injuries. BC Hydro missed the targets for
lost time injury frequency and severity but our performance has remained relatively stable
over the past five years. Preventing injuries such as those resulting from slips, trips and falls
and cuts through our knife injury reduction program should support future positive results.

e  With regards to reliability, CAIDI and SAIDI were better than the annual targets meaning the
average system customer interruption duration and the average outage duration of the
impacted customers were lower than expected. SAIFI, which represents the average number
of times that a customer experiences an outage during the year, remained within the 10
percent range of the target. CEMI-4 exceeded the annual target by more than 10 percent
mainly due to multiple weather related outages affecting the same customers four or more
times, mostly in the Lower Mainland and Vancouver Island areas.
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Goal 2: Succeed Through Relationships

Gain support for our work by building trusted relationships with First Nations, customers,
suppliers and the communities we serve.

Strategies

e In2015/16, we started the implementation of a comprehensive Customer Strategy. With a
renewed focus on the customer across the organization, along with execution of some
specific initiatives to help make it easy for customers to do business with us, we were able to
exceed our Customer Satisfaction Survey (CSAT) target by two percent. Some highlights
include:

e}

O

O

Call centre training focussing on soft skills to find out what we can do to help our
customers, as well as improvements to our planned outage process and our
communications to listen to customer concerns and reduce any negative impacts.
With the installation of smart meters, billing accuracy consistently high due to the
nature and accuracy of daily registered reads. For non-smart metered premises,
manual meter reading has continued with a quality assurance process to maintain
accuracy.

First call resolution improved this past year from 71 percent to 73.5 percent.

e BC Hydro once again earned a gold-level certification for best practices from the Canadian

Council for Aboriginal Business’ Progressive Aboriginal Relations (PAR) program. Key
activities we undertook this year to support program sustainment include:

@]

Engaging with First Nations earlier in the project planning cycle to improve
transparency for First Nations to better incorporate their interests into the delivery of
our capital programs, as well as enhance opportunities for collaboration.

Supporting business development and employment by investing approximately $100
million for work undertaken by aboriginal businesses. An example is our contract
with a Skeetchestn-owned company to provide gravel for a resurfacing project at our
Kelly Lake Substation.

Advancing training and employment plans with First Nations, educators and service
providers in the Northeast, Okanagan, and Lower Mainland regions.

Awarding $50,000 in scholarships and bursaries to aboriginal students who are
working toward BC Hydro careers.

Focusing our efforts on building support with aboriginal people in areas where BC
Hydro has a large operating footprint and where our infrastructure footprint is
expected to grow. For example, we are collaborating on a five year work plan with
the Okanagan Nation Alliance.
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ance Enmﬁ._-d 9- _NJ |

V3 A b

B
DA
.ﬂ% D, ot =i
CSAT Index
[Customer Satisfaction Index: % of customers 86.0 85.0 86.0 85.0 87.0 85.0 85.0
satisfied or very satisfied]
Py Asewmcy 985 | 99.1 | 995 | 99.0 99.5 N/A? | N/A?

[% of accurate bills]

First Call Resolution 2 2
) 68.0 71.0 71.0 71.0 73. N/A N/A
[% of customer calls resolved first time] 3

Progressive Aboriginal Relations

Designation® Gold Gold | Gold Gold Gold Gold Gold

" Performance Measure descriptions, rationale, data source information and benchmarking is available online at www bchydro.com/performance.

* This performance measure was removed from the 2016/17 — 2018/19 Service Plan; therefore, targets are not included

* BC Hydro attained a gold-level designation from the Canadian Council for Aboriginal Business in 2015/16 which is valid for a three year period. In fiscal
2019, BC Hydro will apply for the next certification.

Goal 3: Mind Our Footprint

Create a sustainable energy future in B.C. by carefully managing our impacts on the
environment and fostering an energy conservation and efficiency culture.

Strategies

In 2015/16, BC Hydro continued to:

e Implement its conservation plan which is forecast to exceed the Clean Energy Act objective
to meet at least two-thirds of future demand growth through conservation by 2020. This
includes energy management programs and conservation rate structures, supporting new
energy efficiency codes and standards, and maintaining an energy conservation and
efficiency culture.

e Meet the 93 per cent clean energy objective in the Clean Energy Act by building Site C,
completing electricity purchase agreements for new wind, solar and run-of-river projects, and
exploring the development of zero-emission capacity resources.

e Meet regulatory requirements related to greenhouse gas emissions reporting and verification
for our electricity generation, transmission and distribution operations.

¢ Contribute to meeting the Province’s goal of achieving carbon neutrality in the public sector
by purchasing offsets to reach net zero greenhouse gas emissions from our buildings,
vehicles and paper use.

e Facilitate the electrification of transportation in B.C. through the establishment of a new
electric vehicle office and customer service strategy; obtaining approval from the
Commission for a new shore power rate for ocean vessels to access grid power while in port;
and providing leadership support to Plug In BC, an initiative empowered to lay the
groundwork for plug-in electric vehicles and related electric charging infrastructure in B.C.

® Manage the impact on the environment from BC Hydro’s new developments and retrofits of
existing facilities by incorporating an “avoid, minimize and offset” approach to project
design, planning and implementation.
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o Implement environmental studies and projects related to water licence requirements under
BC Hydro’s Water Use Plans, to confirm the suitability of operational controls and
infrastructure at our facilities.

e Implement the polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) electrical equipment phase-out strategy, and
the long-term strategy for the handling, decontamination and disposal of PCB contaminated
equipment and materials.

e T
Wive . b u..._\..ﬂﬂﬂv..._h..jn.fu....—

Demand Side Management (DSM)
(GWh/year)’

4,460 4776 | 4,334 5,000 5,091 N/A® N/A’

Clean Energy (%)* 98.2 97.1 | 979 93.0 98.3 93.0 93.0

Electricity Production GHG Emissions
(kilotonnes CO,e)**
Carbon Neutral Program Emissions

631 730 667 1,100 606’ N/A® N/AS

10 8 8
(kilotonnes CO,¢)*’ 28.8 27.0 26.6 28.0 27.3 N/A N/A

Performance Measure descriptions, rationale, data source information and benchmarking is available online at www bchydro.com/performance.
Target numbers are rounded values presented as cumulative run-rate savings since 2008 and include energy savings from energy conservation programs
as well as from codes/standards and rate structures. The conservation program results were within one percent of Plan. This was due to efforts in codes &
standards, commercial new construction, load displacement, transmission service rates and our Commercial Leaders in Energy Management program.
* This performance measure was changed in the 2016/17 — 2018/19 Service Plan; therefore, the F2017 and F2018 targets are not applicable. The new
Energy Conservation Portfolio performance measure will be New Incremental Energy Savings (GWh/yr). The targets for this new measure are 700
GWh/yr in F2017 and 700 GWh/yr in F2018.
+The Clean Energy Target represents the minimum threshold generation target in accordance with the B.C. Government’s requirement that at least 93 per
cent of electricity generation in the province be from clean or renewable resources. BC Hydro’s forecast is based on actual resource use and is consistent
with previous years. This year’s actual was the highest BC Hydro has achieved in a decade.
5 All actuals, forecast and targets for Electricity Production GHG Emissions and Carbon Neutral Program Emissions are presented on a calendar year basis,
not fiscal year, For Electricity Production, this is to ensure consistency with GHG emissions reports filed under the Canadian Environmental Protection
Act, 1999 and the B.C. Reporting Regulation. For Carbon Neutral this is to ensure consistency with the B.C. Carbon Neutral Government Regulation.
¢The Electricity Production GHG Emissions measure includes emissions from electricity generation, electricity purchased from B.C. Independent Power
Producers (IPP), and fugitive SF; releases.
7 Electricity Production GHG emissions were 606 kilotonnes CO,e, which is 45 percent below the plan of 1,110 kilotonnes CO,e. Emissions were lower
than forecasted for the Island Generation IPP, Burrard Generating Station, and Fort Nelson Generating Station. Fugitive SF releases were also lower than
forecasted.
¥ This performance measure was removed from the 2016/17 — 2018/19 Service Plan; therefore, targets are not included.
9 The Carbon Neutral Program Emissions measures are based on emissions from BC Hydro’s vehicle fleet, buildings and paper use.
19 Carbon Neutral Program Emissions were 27.3 kilotonnes COze, which is a favorable result and three percent below the target of 28.0 kilotonnes COxe.
The Carbon Neutral Program Emissions were almost three percent higher in 2015 than in the previous calendar year. This is due to a seven percent
increase in vehicle fleet fuel consumption that was partially mitigated by a reduction in building energy use and paper use.

Goal 4: Foster Economic Development

Foster economic development opportunities across B.C. through our projects, practices and
advancement of the energy efficiency and clean energy sectors.

Strategies
Many of BC Hydro’s operating, capital and procurement activities support provincial economic
development and create local employment. Several are noted in Appendix C: Crown
Corporations Mandate and Actions Summary. In addition, this past year:
e BC Hydro received Commission approval for a tariff that would allow indirect
interconnection service for transmission voltage customers. This will facilitate economic
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development by allowing customers to connect to BC Hydro through other customer-
owned transmission infrastructure.

e BC Hydro’s conservation programs help create jobs by fostering B.C.’s energy efficiency
industry made up of contractors, engineers and suppliers, while helping customers lower

their energy bills and utilize new technologies, to improve the competitiveness of their
businesses.

Goal 5: Maintain Competitive Rates

Deliver value for British Columbia and maintain competitive rates by efficiently and responsibly
managing our business.

Strategies

BC Hydro prudently manages its operating and capital expenditures to maintain competitive
rates for our customers. For example, from fiscal 2012-2016, BC Hydro completed 563 capital
projects managed by the Project Delivery group at a total cost of $6.48 billion and came in at
0.18 percent under budget overall. Additional accomplishments this past year include:

e Operational improvements including the introduction of a weather forecasting service to
provide localized and detailed weather information to assist with pre-deployment of
transmission and distribution crews and resources to deliver a faster and more efficient
restoration of service to our customers during storms.

e A Distribution Work Scheduling tool to provide a single view of all provincial
distribution-related work which has supported better and more efficient work scheduling.

e Implementation of supply chain strategies to deliver improved operational performance
and efficiencies which have supported improvements to the supplier model for safety
clothing resulting in a greater than 20 percent improvement in the total life cycle cost.

e New regional optimized contracts which are achieving higher than forecasted savings, as
well as improved contractor safety and quality performance.

wnw-.c-.-:_uann .Eamg..m_m 17 - 20"

Competitive Rates’ 1 1* 1* 1 st . 1* st .
quartile | quartile | quartile | quartile 1" quartile quartile 1" quartile
3
Net Income 509 549 581 653 655 N/A N/A*
($ million)
M 5
Operating Costs’ 705 702 | 710 | 713 715 N/A* N/A*
($ million)
Within Within Within
+5% to +5% to +5% to
+083% | 475% | -183% | sotof | 0.18%on | -5%of | -5%of
Project Budget to Actual Cost® on $3.29 m% M g o budget $6.49 budget budget
billion 9 3 w?_ excluding billion excluding excluding
billion billion project project project
reserve reserve reserve
amounts amounts amounts
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T performance Measure definitions, rationales, data sources, and benchmarking information are available at www behydro com/performance.

?Based on the annual HydroQuebec Report on Electricity Rates in North America.

} Performance within (+/-) 0.5 per cent is considered acceptable.

* This performance measure was removed from the 2016/17 - 2018/19 Service Plan; however, the information is available in the Finance section of the
Annual Service Plan Report.

5 Operating Costs are defined as personnel, materials and external services expenses included in income that are incurred in the day-to-day operation of
BC Hydro’s electric utility, net of recoveries, capitalized costs and reclassification adjustments.

¢ Project Budget to Actual Cost metric is new for 2015/16. The data includes Generation, Substation and Transmission Line projects managed by the
Project Delivery groups in Generation, and Transmission and Distribution. Annually, BC Hydro reflects the past five years’ performance in delivering
capital projects. This is a five year rolling data set of actual costs compared to original approved full scope implementation budgets not including
project reserve amounts, for capital projects that were put into service during the period. Distribution projects (including Smart Metering and
Infrastructure) and property projects (including the Nanaimo Office) that went into service in 2015/16 are included in the F2016 five year rolling
average. Distribution and properties were not included in previous five year rolling averages.

Goal 6: Engage a Safe and Empowered Team

Empower a team that is committed to safety, innovative and prepared for the future.

Strategies
In 2015/16, BC Hydro implemented:

e Targeted campaigns to address workforce gaps which have provided a readily available
talent pool for specialized and critical roles.

e A new workforce plan to ensure the appropriate labour mix with the skills required to
safely design, operate and maintain our system while seeking opportunities to adjust our
labour mix (new staff, specific skills, and, contracted or outsourced service providers) in
areas where costs or business risks can be reduced.

Note: For information on how BC Hydro is working to ensure the safety of employees,
contractors and the public see Goal 1.

Performance Measure 21'

7% | 79 | 8 Meet or 83

exceed
Towers
Employee Engagement (%) Global | Global | Global | Watson’s Global N/A® N/A®
Utility Utility Utility Global Utility
Index Index Index Utilities Index
score score score Index score was
was 79 was 79 was 79 81
TPerformance Measure definitions, rationales, data sources, and benchmarking information are available at www behydro ¢ formance.

*The target is for BC Hydro's favourable score to meet or exceed the industry benchmark. The benchmark is the Towers Watson Global Utilities
Companies Norm, which is calculated annually. Performance and engagement results continue to trend upward and particularly reflect employee
willingness to contribute their discretionary effort to achieving organizational priorities.

*This performance measure was removed from the 2016/17 — 2018/19 Service Plan; therefore, targets are not included.
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FINANCIAL REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) reports on British Columbia Hydro and
Power Authority’s (BC Hydro or the Company) consolidated results and financial position for the
year ended March 31, 2016 (fiscal 2016) and should be read in conjunction with the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes of the Company for the years ended March 31,
2016 and 2015.

The Company applies accounting standards as prescribed by the Province of British Columbia (the
Province) which combines the accounting principles of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) with regulatory accounting in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification 980, Regulated Operations (ASC 980) (collectively, the
Prescribed Standards). All financial information is expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise
specified.

This report contains forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the business and
anticipated financial performance of the Company. These statements are subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ from those contemplated in the
forward-looking statements.

HIGHLIGHTS

e Net income for the year ended March 31, 2016 was $655 million, $74 million higher than the
prior fiscal year net income of $581 million. The increase from the prior year was primarily due
to higher domestic revenues mainly due to higher average customer rates reflecting a British
Columbia Utilities Commission (BCUC) approved rate increase of 6 per cent for fiscal 2016.
This was partially offset by higher finance charges primarily due to higher planned volume of
long-term debt borrowings, higher planned lease charges related to electricity purchase
agreements, and higher planned short-term interest rates, as well as higher amortization and
depreciation expenses primarily due to an increase in assets in service.

¢ Inflows to the system during fiscal 2016 were 97 per cent of average, compared to 102 per cent
of average for the prior fiscal year. Actual inflows to Williston and Kinbasket reservoirs were
102 per cent and 110 per cent of average, respectively, compared to 93 per cent and 112 per cent
respectively in the prior fiscal year. The lower inflows in fiscal 2016 were due to lower than
average inflows in the Kootenay and Pend-d’Oreille basins and at most of BC Hydro’s smaller
plants.

e Capital expenditures, before contributions in aid of construction, for the year ended March 31,
2016 were $2,306 million, a $137 million increase over the prior fiscal year. BC Hydro
continues to invest significantly in capital projects to refurbish its ageing infrastructure and
build new assets for future growth, including the Site C Clean Energy project, John Hart
Generating Station Replacement project, Ruskin Dam Safety and Powerhouse Upgrade project,
Interior to Lower Mainland Transmission project, Dawson Creek/Chetwynd Area Transmission
project, and the Upper Columbia Capacity Additions at Mica — Units 5 & 6 project.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

for the years ended March 31 (8 in millions) 2016 2015 Change
Total Revenues $ 5,657 $ 5,748 $ 91)
Net Income $ 655 $ 581 $ 74
Capital Expenditures $ 2,306 $ 2,169 $ 137
GWh Sold (Domestic) 57,300 51,213 6,087
as at March 31 (§ in millions) 2016 2015 Change
Total Assets $ 30,034 $ 27,753 $ 2,281
Shareholder's Equity $ 4,500 $ 4,170 $ 330
Accrued Payment to the Province $ 326 $ 264 $ 62
Retained Earnings $ 4,397 $ 4,068 $ 329
Debt to Equity 80:20 80:20 na
Number of Domestic Customer Accounts 1,960,555 1,935,068 25,487
Total Reservoir Storage (GWh) 16,518 19,565 (3,047)
REVENUES

Total revenues after regulatory account transfers for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $5,657
million, a decrease of $91 million or 2 per cent compared to the prior fiscal year. The decrease was
primarily due to lower trade revenues mainly due to a decrease in the average natural gas price and
decreases in volumes of physical gas and electricity sold, partially offset by higher domestic
revenues primarily due to higher average customer rates and higher surplus energy sales.

(in millions) (gigawatt hours) (8 per MWh)®
for the years ended March 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Domestic
Residential $ 1,842 § 1712 17,331 17,047 $106.28 $100.43
Light industrial and commercial 1,685 1,597 18,421 18,564 91.47 86.03
Large industrial 766 748 13,669 14,020 56.04 53.35
Other energy sales 464 280 7,879 1,582 58.89 176.99
Total Domestic Revenue Before Regulatory Transfer 4,757 4,337 57,300 51,213 83.02 84.69
Rate smoothing and load variance regulatory transfer 299 492 - - - -
Total Domestic $ 5056 $ 4,829 57,300 51,213 $ 8824 § 9429
Trade
Electricity - Gross $ 643 § 989 14,732 21,928 $ 43.65 § 45.10
Less: forward electricity purchases (183) (214) - - - -
Electricity - Net 460 775 - - - -
Gas - Gross 462 886 17,042 21,637 27.11 40.95
Less: forward gas purchases (321) (742) - - - -
Gas - Net 141 144 - - - -
Total Trade' $ 601 $ 919 31,774 43,565 $ 1891 § 21.09
Total $ 5657 § 5,748 89,074 94,778 $ 6351 § 60.65

! Trade revenue regulatory transfer is netted with the trade cost of energy transfer to reflect a frade margin transfer and this is reflected in the cost of

energy table.

2 The Trade S/MWh figures are based on total gross sales which includes physical and financial transactions whereas the volumes only include

physical transactions.
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Domestic Revenues

Total domestic revenues after regulatory account transfers for the year ended March 31, 2016 were
$5,056 million, an increase of $227 million or 5 per cent compared to the prior fiscal year.
Domestic revenues before regulatory account transfers of $4,757 million were $420 million or 10
per cent higher than the prior fiscal year. The increase compared to the prior fiscal year was
primarily due to higher average customer rates and higher other energy sales.

Average customer rates were higher in fiscal 2016 compared to the prior fiscal year, reflecting an
average rate increase as approved by the British Columbia Utilities Commission of 6 per cent
effective April 1, 2015.

Other energy sales were higher as a result of more surplus energy sold into the market as compared
to the prior fiscal year (6,277 GWh for fiscal 2016 and 14 GWh for fiscal 2015). Surplus energy
sales were required to reduce spill risk, as a result of higher reservoir levels at the start of the fiscal
year resulting from increased storage through the fall and winter of the prior year due to low market
prices. In addition, increased generation at Mica was required in the current year to maintain
downstream Arrow reservoir levels and to meet Columbia River Treaty obligations which
contributed to increased surplus energy sales. Surplus sales vary year to year based on level and
timing of inflows, risk of spill, and market conditions.

Variances between actual and planned load are deferred to the Non-Heritage Deferral Account
(NHDA) and variances between actual and planned other energy sales are deferred to the Heritage
Deferral Account (HDA) and NHDA.

Trade Revenues

Powerex, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is an active participant in western energy
markets, buying and selling wholesale power, natural gas, ancillary services, clean and renewable
power, and environmental products.

The Company’s electricity system is interconnected with systems in Alberta and the Western United
States, facilitating sales and purchases of electricity outside of British Columbia. Powerex’s trade
activities help the Company balance its system by being able to import energy to meet domestic
demand when there is a supply shortage and exporting energy when there is a supply surplus.
Exports are made only after ensuring domestic demand requirements can be met.

Total trade revenues for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $601 million, a decrease of $318
million or 35 per cent compared to the prior fiscal year. The decrease in revenue was primarily due
to a 34 per cent decrease in the average natural gas sales price and a 21 per cent decrease in the
volume of physical gas sold, as well as a 33 per cent decrease in the volume of physical electricity
sold. The decrease in the average natural gas sales price was reflective of an increase in production
in the U.S. and mild temperatures in Eastern North America in the current year resulting in lower
than normal demand. The decrease in the volume of physical gas sold was primarily due to lower
gas trading opportunities following decreased demand as a result of warmer temperatures. The
decrease in the volume of physical electricity sold for trade was primarily due to higher volumes of
surplus energy sold for domestic purposes as well as an outage for a key third party transmission
line to California.
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Variances between actual and planned trade revenues are transferred to the Trade Income Deferral
Account (TIDA).

OPERATING EXPENSES

For the year ended March 31, 2016, total operating expenses of $4,250 million were $285 million
lower than the prior fiscal year. The decrease over the prior fiscal year was primarily due to lower
expenditures for trade electricity and gas purchases. In addition, there were lower domestic energy
costs, partially offset by higher amortization and depreciation expense.

i

Cost of Energy

Energy costs are comprised of electricity and gas purchases for domestic and trade customers, water
rentals and transmission and other charges. Energy costs are influenced primarily by the volume of
energy consumed by customers, the mix of sources of supply and market prices of energy. The mix
of sources of supply is influenced by variables such as the current and forecast market prices of
energy, water inflows, reservoir levels, energy demand, and environmental and social impacts.

Total energy costs after regulatory transfers for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $1,852 million,
$351 million or 16 per cent lower than the prior fiscal year. The decrease over the prior fiscal year
was primarily due to lower trade electricity and gas purchases.

(in millions) (gigawatt hours) (8 per MWh) !
for the years ended March 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Domestic
Water rental payments (hydro generation)' $ 327 § 334 48,376 41318 $ 6.62 $ 8.11
Purchases from Independent Power Producers 1,229 1,064 14,319 13,377 85.82 79.54
Other electricity purchases - Domestic 3 6 122 207 22.66  28.76
Gas for thermal generation 29 34 215 213 13464 15736
Transmission charges and other expenses 24 2 111 115 - -
Non-treaty storage / Libby Coordination Agreement (15) 14 - - - -
Allocation from (to) trade energy - 16 (6) 512 24.79 33.51
Total Domestic Cost of Energy Before Regulatory Transfers 1,597 1,470 63,137 55,742 2530 2637
Domestic cost of energy regulatory transfers 172) (12) - - - -
Total Domestic $ 1,425 § 1458 63,137 55,742 $ 2257 $26.15
Trade
Electricity - Gross $ 362 § 617 14,602 22397 $24.79 $ 2755
Less: forward electricity purchases (183) (214) - - - -
Electricity - Net 179 403 - - - -
Remarketed gas - Gross 401 842 17,296 21,812 23.18 38.60
Less: forward gas purchases (321) (742) - - - -
Remarketed gas - Net 80 100 - - - -
Transmission charges and other expenses 215 248 - - - -
Allocation (to) from domestic energy - (16) 6 (512) 24.79  33.51
Total Trade Cost of Energy Before Regulatory Transfers 474 735 31,904 43,697 2058 21.73
Trade net margijn regulatory transfer (47) 10 - - - -
Total Trade § 427 § 745 31,904 43,697 $19.10 $ 21.96
Total Energy Costs $ 1,852 § 2,203 95,041 99,439  § 2141 § 2431

! Total GWh is net of storage exchange.
? Total cost per MWh includes other electricity purchases at gross cost.
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Domestic Energy Costs

Total domestic energy costs after regulatory transfers for the year ended March 31, 2016 were
$1,425 million, $33 million or 2 per cent lower than the prior fiscal year. Domestic energy costs
before regulatory transfers of $1,597 million for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $127 million
or 9 per cent higher than the prior fiscal year. The increase in costs, before regulatory transfers, was
primarily due to higher Independent Power Producer costs as more Independent Power Producers
were in operation during the current year. The increase was also due to higher domestic
transmission costs, as a result of increased surplus sales in the current year. This was partially offset
by lower energy costs from water transactions related to the Non-Treaty Storage Agreement and
Libby Coordination Agreement and a lower allocation from trade energy.

Variances between actual and planned domestic cost of energy are transferred to the HDA and
NHDA.

Trade Energy Costs

Total trade energy costs after regulatory account transfers for the year ended March 31, 2016 were
$427 million, a decrease of $318 million or 43 per cent compared with the prior fiscal year. Trade
energy costs before regulatory account transfers for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $474
million, a decrease of $261 million or 36 per cent compared with the prior fiscal year. The decrease
was primarily due to a 40 per cent decrease in the average gas purchase price and a 21 per cent
decrease in the volume of physical gas purchased, as well as a 35 per cent decrease in the volume of
physical electricity purchased. The decrease in the average gas purchase price was primarily
reflective of an increase in production in the U.S. and mild temperatures in Eastern North America
in the current year resulting in lower than normal demand. The decrease in volume of physical
electricity and physical gas purchased was consistent with the decrease in physical electricity and
physical gas sold, respectively.

Variances between actual and planned trade cost of energy are transferred to the TIDA.

Water Inflows

Water inflows to the system during fiscal 2016 were 97 per cent of average, compared to 102 per
cent of average for the prior fiscal year. Actual inflows to Williston and Kinbasket reservoirs were
102 per cent and 110 per cent of average, respectively, compared to 93 per cent and 112 per cent
respectively in the prior fiscal year. The lower inflows in fiscal 2016 were due to lower than
average inflows in the Kootenay and Pend-d’Oreille basins and at most of BC Hydro’s smaller
plants.

The Williston and Kinbasket reservoirs have been managed such that system energy storage on
March 31, 2016 was 14,900 GWh, or 2,100 GWh above the 10 year historic average. This was
2,900 GWh lower than the system energy storage of 17,800 GWh recorded one year earlier. The
Williston and Kinbasket reservoir energy contents were 11,200 GWh (1,800 GWh above the 10
year historic average) and 3,700 GWh (300 GWh above the 10 year historic average), respectively,
with Williston the same as the prior fiscal year and Kinbasket 2,900 GWh lower than the prior fiscal
year. The relative imbalance between the Williston and Kinbasket reservoir operations during this
period was due to running Mica to support Arrow reservoir levels while meeting Arrow releases
obligated under the Columbia River Treaty. The higher than average levels of Williston storage at
the end of the fiscal year are a culmination of lower than forecast system loads and market prices,
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unit outages at the Gordon M. Shrum generating station, and more restrictive than normal ice
constraints.

Personnel Expenses

Personnel expenses include salaries and wages, benefits and post-employment benefits. Personnel
expenses for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $527 million, comparable to personnel expenses
of $534 million in the prior fiscal year.

Materials and External Services

Expenditures on materials and external services for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $605
million, $12 million higher than the prior fiscal year, primarily due to increased expenditures on
electricity purchase agreements accounted for as finance leases and a recovery from a third party
recognized in the prior year, lowering that year’s expenses.

Amortization and Depreciation

Amortization and depreciation expense includes the depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(PP&E), amortization of intangible assets, and the amortization of certain regulatory assets and
liabilities. For the year ended March 31, 2016, amortization and depreciation expense was $1,241
million, $36 million or 3 per cent higher than the prior fiscal year primarily due to an increase in
depreciation of property, plant and equipment due to an increase in assets in service.

Grants and Taxes

As a Crown Corporation, the Company is exempt from paying federal and provincial income taxes,
but pays local government taxes and grants in lieu to municipalities and regional districts, and
school tax to the Province on certain assets. Total grants and taxes for the year ended March 31,
2016 were $220 million, comparable to total grants and taxes of $209 million in the prior fiscal
year.

Capitalized Cosis

Capitalized costs consist of overhead costs directly attributable to capital expenditures that are
transferred from operating costs to PP&E. Certain overhead costs not eligible for capitalization
under IFRS are transferred from operating costs to the IFRS PP&E regulatory account. These
transfers are amortized over 40 years which approximates the composite average life of the PP&E.
In addition, starting fiscal 2013, the ongoing impact of this change is being smoothed into rates over
a 10-year period through transfers to the IFRS PP&E regulatory account as approved by the BCUC.
As such, each year, 1/10™ more of ineligible costs will be charged to operating costs such that by
the end of year ten, all ineligible costs will be charged to operating costs.

Capitalized costs for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $203 million, $21 million lower than
capitalized costs of $224 million in the prior fiscal year. The reduction in capitalized costs was
primarily due to the annual reduction of the transfer of operating costs to the IFRS PP&E account.

FINANCE CHARGES

Finance charges for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $752 million, $120 million or 19 per cent
higher than the prior fiscal year. The increase was primarily due to higher planned volume of long-
term debt borrowings, higher planned lease charges related to electricity purchase agreements, and
higher planned short-term interest rates.
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REGULATORY TRANSFERS

The Company presents its results and financial position under the Prescribed Standards. Under the
Prescribed Standards, the Company applies the principles of IFRS combined with ASC 980 to
reflect the rate-regulated environment in which the Company operates. These Prescribed Standards
allow for the deferral of costs and recoveries that under IFRS would otherwise be included in the
determination of total comprehensive income in the year the amounts are incurred or would be
reflected in rates. The deferred amounts are either recovered or refunded through future rate
adjustments.

The use of regulatory accounts is common amongst regulated utility industries throughout North
America. BC Hydro uses various regulatory accounts, in compliance with BCUC orders, in order to
better match costs and benefits for different generations of customers, smooth out the rate impact of
large non-recurring costs, and defer to future periods differences between forecast and actual costs
or revenues. Regulatory accounts allow the Company to defer certain types of revenue and cost
variances through transfers to and from the accounts which are then included in customer rates in
future periods, subject to approval by the BCUC and have the effect of adjusting net income.
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Net regulatory account transfers are comprised of the following:

for the years ended March 31 (in millions) 2016 2015
Energy Deferral Accounts
Heritage Deferral Account $ (152) $ 82
Non-Heritage Deferral Account 483 238
Trade Income Deferral Account 51 (10)
382 310
Forecast Variance Accounts
Total Finance Charges (158) (120)
Rate Smoothing Account 121 166
Non-Current Pension Cost 142 317
Other 18 25
123 388
Capital-Like Accounts
Demand-Side Management 145 125
Site C - 65
Smart Metering & Infrastructure 20 26
IFRS Property, Plant & Equipment 134 157
299 373
Non-Cash Accounts
Environmental Provisions & Costs 51 69
First Nations Provisions & Costs 14 12
Other 6 6
71 87
Amortization of regulatory accounts 472) (491)
Interest on regulatory accounts 72 67
Net change in regulatory accounts $ 475 $ 734

For the year ended March 31, 2016, net additions to the Company’s regulatory accounts after
interest and amortization were $475 million compared to prior year net additions of $734 million.
The net asset balance in the regulatory asset and liability accounts as at March 31, 2016 was an
asset of $5,908 million compared to an asset of $5,433 million as at March 31, 2015.

Net additions to the regulatory accounts during the year ended March 31, 2016 included:

e Increases of $382 million to the energy deferral accounts primarily due to lower domestic
revenues, higher Independent Power Producer costs, and lower trade income, partially offset
by higher surplus sales;

e Planned expenditures of $145 million on Demand-Side Management projects, which support
energy conservation;

e Transfers of $142 million to the Non-Current Pension Cost regulatory account for variances
that arise between forecast and actual non-current pension and other post-employment
benefit costs, which would otherwise be included in operating expenses as well as other
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comprehensive income. The increase was primarily due to a change in the mortality
assumption incorporating future mortality improvement, and by a lower rate of return on
plan assets, partially offset by an increase in the discount rate used to value defined benefit
obligations;

Transfers of $134 million to the IFRS PP&E regulatory account for smoothing the rate
impact of overhead costs not eligible for capitalization under IFRS as they are not
considered directly attributable to the construction of capital assets;

Increases of $121 million to the Rate Smoothing regulatory account for smoothing the rate
impacts of the rate increases in the 10 Year Rates Plan;

Interest on regulatory accounts of $72 million; and
Transfers of $51 million to the Environmental Provisions & Costs regulatory account

reflecting increases required to asbestos and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs)
contamination provisions.

These net additions were partially offset by:

[ ]

Net amortization of $472 million which is the regulatory mechanism to recover the
regulatory account balances in rates; and

Transfers of $158 million to the Total Finance Charges regulatory liability account due to

lower interest rates, lower volume of borrowings, and higher capitalization of interest during
construction.
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Net regulatory account balances are as follows:

as at March 31 (in millions) 2016 2015
Energy Deferral Accounts
Heritage Deferral Account $ (24) $ 165
Non-Heritage Deferral Account 917 524
Trade Income Deferral Account 249 244
1,142 933
Capital-Like Accounts
Demand-Side Management 908 842
Site C 436 419
Capital Project Investigation Costs 25 30
Smart Metering & Infrastructure 283 283
IFRS Property, Plant & Equipment 872 758
2,524 2,332
Forecast Variance Accounts
Rate Smoothing Account 287 166
Non-Current Pension Cost 691 564
Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses (69) (71)
CIA Amortization 92 87
Total Finance Charges (305) (173)
Other Forecast Variance Accounts 44 32
740 605
Non-Cash Accounts
First Nations Provisions & Costs 541 564
Environmental Provisions & Costs 358 382
Future Removal & Site Restoration Costs ) (33)
IFRS Pension 612 650
1,502 1,563
Total Regulatory Account Balance $ 5908 $ 5433

BC Hydro has regulatory mechanisms in place to collect 24 of 26 regulatory accounts in use or with
balances at March 31, 2016, which represent approximately 88 per cent of the total net regulatory
account balance, in rates over various periods.

COMPARISON WITH SERVICE PLAN

The Budget Transparency and Accountability Act requires that BC Hydro file a Service Plan each
year. BC Hydro’s Service Plan for fiscal 2015/16-2017/18 was filed in February 2015 and forecast
net income for fiscal 2016 at $653 million.

The table below provides an overview of BC Hydro’s fiscal 2016 financial performance results,
relative to its February 2015 Service Plan forecast.

2015/16 Annual Service Plan Report 26

page 77 of 334 EGM-2016-63060 EA



British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority

Consolidated Statement of Operations

2016 Variance to

Service 2016
(in millions) Actual Plan Service Plan
2015 2016 2016
Revenues
Domestic $4829 § 5,056 5057 § (1)
Trade 919 601 1,029 (428)
5,748 5,657 6,086 (429)
Expenses
Operating Costs
Cost of energy 2,203 1,852 2,280 428
Other operating expenses
Personnel expenses, materials
and external services ' 868 905 900 5)
Amortization 1,205 1,241 1,254 13
Finance charges 632 752 751 €))
Grants and taxes 209 220 218 )
Other 50 32 30 (2)
5,167 5,002 5,433 431
Net Income $ 581 $§ 655 § 653 $ 2

1 T .
These amounts are net of capitalized overhead and recoveries.

Trade revenue and trade cost of energy amounts were both lower than the forecast by $428 million;
however, the trade gross margin was on Plan. Variances to the February 2015 Service Plan for
trade revenue and trade cost of energy are both deferred through the TIDA.

Overall, domestic revenues and expenses and net income were comparable to the Service Plan
forecast.

PAYMENT TO THE PROVINCE

Under a Special Directive from the Province, the Company is required to make an annual payment
to the Province (the Payment) on or before June 30 of each year. The Payment is equal to 85 per
cent of the Company’s net income for the most recently completed fiscal year unless the debt to
equity ratio, as defined by the Special Directive, after deducting the Payment, is greater than 80:20.
If the Payment would result in a debt to equity ratio exceeding 80:20, then the Payment is the
greatest amount that can be paid without causing the debt to equity ratio to exceed 80:20. The
Payment accrued for the year ended March 31, 2016 was $326 million which was below 85 per cent
of the Company’s net income due to the 80:20 cap.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flow provided by operating activities for the year ended March 31, 2016 was $1,060 million,
which is comparable to cash flow provided by operating activities of $1,018 million in the prior
fiscal year.
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The long-term debt balance net of sinking funds at March 31, 2016 was $18,046 million, compared
with $16,721 million at March 31, 2015. The increase was mainly as a result of an increase in long-
term bond issues totaling $2,641 million ($2,691 million par value) and net foreign exchange losses
of $24 million. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in revolving borrowings of
$1,171 million and long-term bond redemptions totaling $150 million par value. Long-term debt
increased primarily to fund capital expenditures.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The capital
expenditures, before contributions in aid of construction, were as follows:

for the years ended March 31 (in millions) 2016 2015
Transmission lines and substations replacements & expansion $ 612 $ 1,003
Generation replacements and expansion 498 526
Distribution system improvements and expansion 464 399
General, including technology, vehicles and buildings 243 216
Site C Clean Energy project 489 25
Total Capital Expenditures $ 2306 $ 2,169

Total capital expenditures presented in this table are different from the amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assel expenditures in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows due 1o the effect of accruals related to these expenditures.

Transmission lines and substation capital expenditures includes expenditures on the Interior to
Lower Mainland Transmission Line project, Dawson Creek/Chetwynd Area Transmission project,
Surrey Area Substation project, Big Bend Substation project, the Transmission Wood Structure
Replacement program, Arnott Capacity Upgrade project, Horsey to George Tripp Substation 230kV
Cable project, Meikle Wind Energy interconnection project, and Merritt Area Transmission project.

Generation capital expenditures include expenditures for John Hart Generating Station Replacement
project, Ruskin Dam Safety and Powerhouse Upgrade project, Upper Columbia Capacity Additions
at Mica — Units 5 & 6 project, Hugh Keenleyside Spillway Gate Reliability project and G.M. Shrum
Units 1-5 Turbine Rehabilitation project.

Distribution capital expenditures include expenditures on customer driven work, end of life asset
replacements, system expansion and improvements, and the Smart Metering & Infrastructure
program.

General capital expenditures include expenditures on various technology projects, building
development programs, and vehicles.

Site C Clean Energy project expenditures incurred after the provincial government’s positive
investment decision in December 2014 are recorded as capital and include expenditures in support
of construction which started in July 2015.
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RATE REGULATION

In the process of regulating and setting rates for BC Hydro, the BCUC must ensure that the rates are
sufficient to allow BC Hydro to provide reliable electricity service, meet its financial obligations,
comply with government policy and achieve an annual rate of return on deemed equity (ROE).

BC Hydro 10 Year Rates Plan

In November 2013, the Government announced a 10 Year Rates Plan for BC Hydro. On March 6,
2014, the Government issued Directions No. 6 and 7 to the BCUC to implement the 10 Year Rates
Plan. Direction No. 6 set BC Hydro’s rate increase at 9 per cent for fiscal 2015 and 6 per cent for
fiscal 2016 and also specifies the amounts to be amortized from BC Hydro’s regulatory accounts in
those years. BC Hydro rate increases for fiscal 2017, fiscal 2018, and fiscal 2019 are subject to
BCUC review but are capped at 4.0 per cent, 3.5 per cent, and 3.0 per cent pursuant to Direction
No. 7. The BCUC will also set the rates for the final five years of the plan. In addition, Direction
No. 7 sets the return on equity at 11.84 per cent for fiscal 2015, fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2017.
Furthermore, the Deferral Account Rate Rider will remain at 5 per cent for fiscal 2016 and future
years. Commencing in fiscal 2018, the dividend will be reduced by $100 million per year until it
reaches zero and will thereafter remain at zero until BC Hydro achieves a 60:40 debt to equity ratio.
Allowed net income for fiscal 2018 and future years will increase by the forecast growth in the B.C.
consumer price index.

BC Hydro Request for Fiscal 2017 Interim Rates

In February 2016, BC Hydro filed a rate application with the BCUC requesting an interim general
rate increase of 4.0 per cent effective April 1, 2016 (fiscal 2017). In March 2016, the BCUC issued
Order No. G-40-16, approving the interim rate increase.

BC Hydro Fiscal 2017-2019 Revenue Requirements Application

BC Hydro plans to file a three-year Revenue Requirements Application with the BCUC in July

2016 for the test period covering fiscal 2017-2019. This application will seek to finalize the interim
rate increase of 4.0 per cent approved for fiscal 2017 by BCUC Order No. G-40-16, and request
approval of further rate increases of 3.5 per cent in fiscal 2018, and 3.0 per cent in fiscal 2019,
consistent with the 10 Year Rates Plan. The BCUC will likely issue its decision on the Application
in calendar 2017.

BC Hydro 2015 Rate Design Application

In September 2015, BC Hydro filed Module 1 of its 2015 Rate Design Application with the BCUC.
Among the various approvals sought in Module 1 of the 2015 Rate Design Application, BC Hydro
is seeking approval to simplify its commercial rates, retain the inclining block structure for
residential customers and introduce a new rate for transmission service customers that would
provide market pricing during the freshet period (May to July) for incremental consumption. A
final decision by the BCUC on the Rate Design Application is expected late in calendar 2016.
Changes in rate design are designed to be revenue neutral to BC Hydro.

Debt Management Regulatory Account Application

In December 2015, BC Hydro filed an Application with the BCUC seeking approval to establish a
new regulatory account to capture mark-to-market gains and losses of financial contracts that hedge
long-term future debt. This new account will assist BC Hydro in mitigating risks of increasing
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interest rates while borrowing to support its capital plan. The Commission approved BC Hydro’s
Application on March 30, 2016 (Order No. G-42-16).

RISK MANAGEMENT

BC Hydro is exposed to numerous risks, which can result in safety, environmental, financial,
reliability and reputational impacts. This section of the MD&A discusses risks that impacted
financial performance in the year.

The impact of many financial risks associated with uncontrollable external influences on BC
Hydro’s net income is mitigated through the use of regulatory accounts. Regulatory accounts assist
in matching costs and benefits for different generations of customers, to smooth the impact of large,
non-recurring costs and to defer for future recovery in rates the differences between planned and
actual costs or revenues that arise due to uncontrollable events. BC Hydro has a documented plan
for the recovery of its regulatory accounts which it filed with the F15-F16 RRRA.

In addition, information on risks and opportunities that could significantly impact BC Hydro
meeting its objectives are outlined at www.bchydro.com/serviceplan.

Significant Financial Risks

The largest sources of variability in BC Hydro’s financial performance are typically domestic and
trade revenue and cost of energy. Both revenues and cost of energy are influenced by several
elements, which generally fall into the following four categories:

e Generation available from BC Hydro-dispatched hydro plants;
e Domestic demand for energy;

e Energy market prices; and,

e Deliveries from electricity purchase agreement contracts.

Neither a high nor a low value of any of these individual drivers is intrinsically positive or negative
for BC Hydro’s financial results. It is the specific combination of these drivers in any given year
which has an impact.

While meeting domestic demand, environmental regulations and treaty obligations, BC Hydro
attempts to operate the system to take maximum advantage of market energy prices — buying from
the markets when prices are low and selling when prices are high. In doing so, BC Hydro attempts
to optimize the combined effects of these elements and reduce the net cost of energy for our
customers.

Energy Availability

The amount of generation available influences BC Hydro’s financial results through both changing
the amount of energy we have available to export (or need to import to meet domestic load) and
through changing our ability to take advantage of short-term market price variations. The amount of
available generation is driven primarily by hydrology - the amount and timing of inflows into BC
Hydro-dispatched plants. The range of historic inflows is significant, with over 15,000 GWh (or
approximately 25 per cent of current domestic demand) separating the wettest years from the driest
in the most recent 43 years of data in BC Hydro’s records. To a less significant extent, the amount
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of available generation is also impacted by the availability of both BC Hydro and Independent
Power Producer generating assets and by BC Hydro’s operation of the system.

The financial forecast in the Service Plan assumes that inflows into BC Hydro-dispatched plants
will be the average of the most recent 43 years of data in BC Hydro’s records.

The system inflow energy for fiscal 2016 was 97 per cent of average, compared to the system
inflow energy for fiscal 2015 at 102 per cent of average. Due to a number of contributing factors,
energy in storage at the beginning of fiscal 2016 was 5,000 GWh above the 10 year average,
reducing the flexibility of the system to absorb above average inflows. Above average system
inflows were not observed, so over the course of fiscal 2016 storage was drawn down, although still
2,100 GWh above the 10 year average on March 31, 2016. This net drawdown was a result of a
very dry summer (Q2 fiscal 2016 inflows were 79 per cent of average), but somewhat offset by
higher fall and early winter inflows (Q3 fiscal 2016 at 111 per cent of average).

Domestic Demand for Energy

Electricity demand is generally increasing as B.C.’s population and gross domestic product
increases; however, short-term fluctuations in electricity demand can be experienced due to large
industrial loads and weather impacts. Large industrial customers can have significant variability in
load as a result of changing supply and demand balances in world commodity markets and related
commodity prices. Weather can have a significant impact on particularly residential load with
colder years resulting in higher demand for electrical heating than in average or warm years.

The amount of electricity demand from BC Hydro’s customers combined with the variable inflow
of water into BC Hydro’s large hydro reservoirs determines the volume of BC Hydro’s market
energy purchases and sales. To the extent there is a mismatch between the amount of available
generation and domestic demand, BC Hydro will be either a net importer or net exporter of energy
in a given year. However, even in high inflow years, BC Hydro may need to make some purchases
during periods of the year when generation availability is low because of either water management
requirements or maintenance outages (generally late fall, winter, and early spring). Similarly, even
in low water years, electricity sales may be advantageous during certain periods either to minimize
spill from large reservoirs or to take advantage of market price fluctuations. The value of all of
these transactions is subject to market price risk.

In fiscal 2016, domestic revenues before regulatory transfers were lower than planned due to lower
domestic loads resulting from the loss of large industrial load related to declining market conditions
including low commodity prices, and a warmer than normal winter. This resulted in annual load
being 3,351 GWh below plan (excluding surplus sales). The energy that would have gone to serving
load will be sold to the market, at prices that are between 10 and 50 per cent of what would have
been received had it been sold to domestic customers. More information can be found in the
discussion on Domestic Revenues.

Energy Market Prices

The cost of energy, the revenue from trade market activity, and the market opportunities available to
Powerex all depend on a combination of system surplus or deficit energy, system flexibility and gas
and electricity market fundamentals. Both domestic loads and market prices in fiscal 2016 were
materially lower than forecast in the Service Plan. Nonetheless, significantly greater than forecast
net market electricity sales were made in fiscal 2016 to manage the generation within the province
that is surplus to load and the above average system storage energy content.
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Deliveries from Electricity Purchase Agreement Contracts

Energy delivered under electricity purchase agreement contracts has a different cost than both
energy generated by BC Hydro and energy purchased or sold in energy markets. Therefore, as the
proportion of electricity purchase agreement contract energy changes BC Hydro’s average cost of
energy changes. BC Hydro’s portfolio of electricity purchase agreement contracts includes a
significant portion of hydro resources and the amount of generation under these contracts is driven
by hydrology and other operational factors that impact deliveries, which may vary significantly
from year to year. In fiscal 2016, there was greater than forecast energy delivered from hydro
Independent Power Producers, primarily due to changes in operations at a large Independent Power
Producer. However, this was partially offset by lower than forecast deliveries for several
Independent Power Producers due to delays in achieving their commercial operations date and
lower than planned thermal generation.

Finance Charges

Interest expense on borrowings is a significant component of Finance Charges. Variability in
interest expense on borrowings is influenced by both the volume of debt BC Hydro requires and the
interest rate paid on that debt. A portion of BC Hydro’s existing debt is subject to changes to
interest rates (variable rate debt) which results in variability in interest expense. BC Hydro accepts
this variability in return for the savings obtained from normally lower short-term rates.

As of March 31, 2016, approximately 13 per cent of existing debt had a maturity of one year or less
and is recognized as variable rate debt. BC Hydro has steadily reduced its allocation of variable rate
debt over the last few years in response to historically low long-term interest rates and rising debt
levels. The majority of BC Hydro’s foreign denominated debt is hedged with long-term foreign
exchange derivative contracts and as a result is not a significant risk variable.

In an effort to further reduce variability in interest expense, BC Hydro intends to hedge a portion of
long-term future debt issuances.

The actual fiscal 2016 financial results compared to the Service Plan can be found in the previous
Comparison with Service Plan discussion.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Budget Transparency and Accountability Act requires that BC Hydro file a Service Plan each
year. BC Hydro’s Service Plan filed in February 2016 forecasted net income for fiscal 2017 at $692
million.

The Company’s earnings can fluctuate significantly due to various non-controllable factors such as
the level of water inflows, domestic sales load, market prices for electricity and natural gas,
weather, temperatures, interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The impact to net income of these
non-controllable factors is largely mitigated through the use of regulatory accounts. The forecast for
fiscal 2017 assumes average water inflows (100 per cent of average), domestic sales of 56,692
GWh, average market energy prices of US $24.15/MWh, short-term interest rates of 0.68 per cent
and a US dollar exchange rate of US $0.7646.
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EARNINGS SENSITIVITY

The following table shows the estimated effect on earnings of changes in some key variables, before
regulatory account transfers. The analysis is based on business conditions and production volumes
forecast for fiscal 2017. Each separate item in the sensitivity analysis assumes the others are held
constant. While these sensitivities are applicable to the period and magnitude of changes on which

they are based, they may not be applicable in other periods, under other economic circumstances or
greater magnitude of changes.

The volatility between BC Hydro’s plan and actual results are mostly mitigated through the use of
BCUC-approved regulatory accounts.

Approximate change
in earnings before
regulatory account
transfers
Factor Change (in $ millions) 5 year high 5 year low Fiscal 2016
Hydro generation : +/-1% 10 | 52,114 GWh 41,226 GWh 49,262 GWh
Electricity trad
cctriclty trade +-10% 20 $206 $174 $174
margins
+/- 100 basi
Interest rates st 40 1.30%2 0.87% 2 0.87%>
points
Exchange rates (US/ 3 3 3
+/- $0.01 5 1.01 .76 $0.76
CDN) $ $ $0.7
10% ch
70 change 2,261 degree | 1,944 degree | 2,008 degree
Weather in normal 35 days * days * days *
degree days 4 y v

' Assumes change in hydro generation is offset by corresponding change in energy imports (i.e. increase in hydro generation is offset
by decrease in energy imports).

? Interest rates are the annual daily average Canadian short-term interest rates (3-month Canadian Dollar Offered Rate).
3 Exchange rates are the annual daily average US Dollar noon rates.

“ The high and low degree days represent the highest degree days in the past five years and the lowest degree days in the past five
years for the five winter months (November to March) on sales weighted basis for the BC Hydro Domestic System. A degree day is
calculated by the difference between the daily average temperature for the day and 18 Degrees Celsius. As such, if the daily average
temperature is below 18 Degree Celsius, by one degree, then there is one degree day for that day. For fiscal 2016, the actual degree
days on sales weighted basis is reported as a total for the five winter months.

5 Trade revenues less trade cost of energy (in millions).
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

The consolidated financial statements of British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority (BC Hydro) are the
responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting provisions
prescribed by the Province of British Columbia pursuant to Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and
Accountability Act and Section 9.1 of the Financial Administration Act (see Note 2(a)). The preparation of
financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates which have been made using careful
judgment. In management’s opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
within the framework of the accounting policies summarized in the consolidated financial statements and
incorporate, within reasonable limits of materiality, all information available at June 1, 2016. The
consolidated financial statements have also been reviewed by the Audit & Finance Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors. Financial information presented elsewhere in this Annual Service Plan
Report is consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Management maintains systems of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded and that reliable financial information is available on a timely basis. These systems include
formal written policies and procedures, careful selection and training of qualified personnel and

appropriate delegation of authority and segregation of responsibilities within the organization. An internal
audit function independently evaluates the effectiveness of these internal controls on an ongoing basis and
reports its findings to management and the Audit & Finance Committee.

The consolidated financial statements have been examined by independent external auditors. The external
auditors’ responsibility is to express their opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements, in all
material respects, fairly present BC Hydro’s financial position, comprehensive income and cash flows in
accordance with financial reporting provisions prescribed by the Province of British Columbia pursuant to
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and Section 9.1 of the Financial
Administration Act (see Note 2(a)). The Auditors’ Report, which follows, outlines the scope of their
examination and their opinion.

The Board of Directors, through the Audit & Finance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that
management fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal controls. The Audit & Finance
Committee, comprised of directors who are not employees, meets regularly with the external auditors, the
internal auditors and management to satisfy itself that each group has properly discharged its responsibility
to review the financial statements before recommending approval by the Board of Directors. The Audit &
Finance Committee also recommends the appointment of external auditors to the Board of Directors. The
internal and external auditors have full and open access to the Audit & Finance Committee, with and
without the presence of management.

§i i .,_._ ?\@ (& E?“\ T

Jessica McDonald Q...o_.%_ Yaremko
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice-President, Finance & Supply Chain
and Chief Financial Officer

Vancouver, Canada
June 1, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Minister of Energy and Mines and Minister Responsible For Core Review, Province of British
Columbia and the Board of Directors of British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of British Columbia Hydro and
Power Authority, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2016, the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the financial reporting provisions prescribed by the Province of British
Columbia pursuant to Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and Section 9.1 of
the Financial Administration Act (see Note 2(a)), and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority as at March 31, 2016 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the financial reporting provisions prescribed by the Province of British Columbia pursuant to Section
23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and Section 9.1 of the Financial Administration
Act (see Note 2(a)).

274
o 2

Chartered Professional Accountants

Vancouver, Canada

June 1, 2016
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the years ended March 31 (in millions) 2016 2015
Revenues
Domestic $ 5,056 $ 4,829
Trade 601 919
5,657 5,748

Expenses
Operating expenses (Note 5) 4,250 4,535
Finance charges (Note 6) 752 632
Net Income 655 581
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items Reclassified Subsequently to Net Income
Effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives designated

as cash flow hedges (Note 19) 12 81
Reclassification to income of derivatives designated

as cash flow hedges (Note 19) (21) (127)
Foreign currency translation gains 10 34
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 1 (12)
Total Comprehensive Income $ 656 $ 569

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at March 31 (in millions) 2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8) $ 44 $ 39
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue (Note 9) 669 627
Inventories (Note 10) 155 122
Prepaid expenses 202 211
Current portion of derivative financial instrument assets (Note 19) 137 152
1,207 1,151
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 21,385 19,933
Intangible assets (Note 12) 609 547
Regulatory assets (Note 13) 6,324 5,714
Derivative financial instrument assets (Note 19) 92 97
Other non-current assets (Note 14) 417 311
28,827 26,602
$ 30,034 § 27,753
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 15) $ 1,816 $ 1,708
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 16) 2,376 3,698
Current portion of derivative financial instrument liabilities (Note 19) 143 85
4,335 5,491
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term debt (Note 16) 15,837 13,178
Regulatory liabilities (Note 13) 416 281
Derivative financial instrument liabilities (Note 19) 27 38
Contributions in aid of construction 1,669 1,583
Post-employment benefits (Note 18) 1,657 1,498
Other non-current liabilities (Note 20) 1,593 1,514
21,199 18,092
Shareholder's Equity
Contributed surplus 60 60
Retained earnings 4,397 4,068
Accumulated other comprehensive income 43 42
4,500 4,170
$ 30,034 $ 27,753

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 11 and 21)
See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

e \ M ) , )
TA AP owies

W, J! Brad Benoeii, 0.B.C. Tracy Redies
Chair, Board of Directors Chair, Audit & Finance Committee
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Total
Unrealized Accumulated

Cumulative Gains/(Losses) Other

Translation on Cash Flow Comprehensive Contributed Retained
(in millions) Reserve Hedges Income Surplus Earnings  Total
Balance, April 1, 2014 $ 33 % 21 $ 54 % 60 $ 3,751 $3,865
Payment to the Province (Note 17) - - - - (264) (264)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) 34 (46) (12) - 581 569
Balance, March 31, 2015 67 (25) 42 60 4,068 4,170
Payment to the Province (Note 17) - - - - (326) (326)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) 10 9) 1 - 655 656
Balance, March 31, 2016 $ 77§ (34) $ 43 3 60 $§ 4,397 $4,500

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the years ended March 31 (in millions) 2016 2015
Operating Activities
Net income $ 655 581
Regulatory account transfers (Note 13) (947) (1,225)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Amortization of regulatory accounts (Note 13) 472 491
Amortization and depreciation expense (Note 7) 745 691
Unrealized losses (gains) on mark-to-market 75 (53)
Employee benefit plan expenses 110 84
Interest accrual 717 670
Other items 69 96
1,896 1,335
Changes in:
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 47) 465
Prepaid expenses 9 -
Inventories 33) 1
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other non-current liabilities (73) (202)
Contributions in aid of construction 98 89
Other non-current assets (79) -
(125) 353
Interest paid (711) (670)
Cash provided by operating activities 1,060 1,018
Investing Activities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset expenditures (2,102) (1,928)
Cash used in investing activities (2,102) (1,928)
Financing Activities
Long-term debt:
Issued 2,641 1,565
Retired (150) (325)
Receipt of revolving borrowings 7,761 8,112
Repayment of revolving borrowings (8,927) (8,326)
Payment to the Province (Note 17) (264) (167)
Other items (14) (17)
Cash provided by financing activities 1,047 842
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5 (68)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 39 107
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 44 39

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY

British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority (BC Hydro) was established in 1962 as a Crown corporation
of the Province of British Columbia (the Province) by enactment of the Hydro and Power Authority Act.
As directed by the Hydro and Power Authority Act, BC Hydro’s mandate is to generate, manufacture,
conserve and supply power. BC Hydro owns and operates electric generation, transmission and distribution
facilities in the province of British Columbia.

The consolidated financial statements of BC Hydro include the accounts of BC Hydro and its principal
wholly-owned operating subsidiaries Powerex Corp. (Powerex), Powertech Labs Inc. (Powertech), and
Columbia Hydro Constructors Ltd. (Columbia), (collectively with BC Hydro, the Company) including BC
Hydro’s one third interest in the Waneta Dam and Generating Facility (Waneta). All intercompany
transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.

The Company accounts for its one third interest in Waneta as a joint operation. BC Hydro has classified
Waneta as a joint operation on the basis that fundamental operating and investing decisions relating to
Waneta require unanimous approval by each co-owner. The consolidated financial statements include the
Company’s proportionate share in Waneta, including its share of any liabilities and expenses incurred
jointly with Teck Metals Ltd. and its revenue from the sale of the output in relation to Waneta.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a) Basis of Accounting

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the significant
accounting policies as set out in Note 4. These policies have been established based on the financial
reporting provisions prescribed by the Province pursuant to Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency
and Accountability Act (BTAA) and Section 9.1 of the Financial Administration Act (FAA). In
accordance with the directive issued by the Province’s Treasury Board, BC Hydro is to prepare these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting principles of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), combined with regulatory accounting in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 980 (ASC 980), Regulated Operations
(collectively, the Prescribed Standards). The application of ASC 980 results in BC Hydro recognizing in
the statement of financial position the deferral and amortization of certain costs and recoveries that have
been approved by the British Columbia Utilities Commission (BCUC) for inclusion in future customer
rates. Such regulatory costs and recoveries would be included in the determination of comprehensive
income unless recovered in rates in the year the amounts are incurred.

BC Hydro’s accounting policies with respect to its regulatory accounts are disclosed in Note 4(a) and
the impact of the application of ASC 980 on these consolidated financial statements is described in Note
13.

Certain amounts in the prior year’s comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on June 1, 2016.
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(b) Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for natural
gas inventories in Note 4(j), financial instruments that are accounted for according to the financial

instrument categories as defined in Note 4(k) and the post-employment benefits obligation as described
in Note 4(0).

(¢) Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional currency of BC Hydro and all of its subsidiaries, except for Powerex, is the Canadian
dollar. Powerex’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Canadian dollars and financial information has been rounded to the nearest million.

(d) Key Assumptions and Significant Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Prescribed Standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in respect of the application of accounting

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from those judgments, estimates, and assumptions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about significant areas of judgment, estimates and assumptions in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as
follows:

(i) Retirement Benefit Obligation

BC Hydro operates a defined benefit statutory pension plan for its employees which is accounted
for in accordance with IAS 19, Employee Benefits. Actuarial valuations are based on key
assumptions which include employee turnover, mortality rates, discount rates, earnings increases
and expected rate of return on retirement plan assets. Judgment is exercised in determining these
assumptions. The assumptions adopted are based on prior experience, market conditions and advice
of plan actuaries. Future results are impacted by these assumptions including the accrued benefit
obligation and current service cost. See Note 18 for significant benefit plan assumptions.

(ii) Provisions and Contingencies

Management is required to make judgments to assess if the criteria for recognition of provisions and
contingencies are met, in accordance with IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. IAS 37 requires that a provision be recognized where there is a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that transfer of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Key judgments are whether a present obligation exists and the probability of an outflow being
required to settle that obligation. Key assumptions in measuring recorded provisions include the
timing and amount of future payments and the discount rate applied in valuing the provision.

The Company is currently defending certain lawsuits where management must make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the final outcome, timing of trial activities and future costs as at
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the period end date. Management has obtained the advice of its external counsel in determining the
likely outcome and estimating the expected costs associated with these lawsuits; however, the
ultimate outcome or settlement costs may differ from management’s estimates.

(iii) Financial Instruments

The Company enters into financial instrument arrangements which require management to make
judgments to determine if such arrangements are derivative instruments in their entirety or contain
embedded derivatives, including whether those embedded derivatives meet the criteria to be
separated from their host contract, in accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. Key judgments are whether certain non-financial items are readily convertible to
cash, whether similar contracts are routinely settled net in cash or delivery of the underlying
commodity taken and then resold within a short period, whether the value of a contract changes in
response to a change in an underlying rate, price, index or other variable, and for embedded
derivatives, whether the economic risks and characteristics are not closely related to the host
contract and a separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative on
a standalone basis.

Valuation techniques are used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments when active
market quotes are not available. Valuation of the Company’s financial instruments is based in part
on forward prices which are volatile and therefore the actual realized value may differ from
management’s estimates.

(iv) Leases

The Company enters into long-term energy purchase agreements that may be considered to be, or
contain a lease. In making this determination, judgment is required to determine whether the
fulfillment of an arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset, and whether the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. For those arrangements considered to be leases, or
which contain an embedded lease, further judgment is required to determine whether to account for
the agreement as either a finance or operating lease by assessing whether substantially all of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Company or remain with the
counterparty to the agreement. The measurement of finance leases requires estimations of the
amounts and timing of future cash flows and the determination of an appropriate discount rate.

NOTE 3: CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective April 1, 2015, the Company adopted Amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits, which had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 4: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Rate Regula

BC Hydro is regulated by the BCUC and both entities are subject to directives and directions issued by
the Province. BC Hydro operates under a cost of service regulation as prescribed by the BCUC. Orders
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(b)

(c)

in Council from the Province establish the basis for determining BC Hydro’s equity for regulatory
purposes, as well as its allowed return on equity and the annual Payment to the Province. Calculation
of its revenue requirements and rates charged to customers are established through applications filed
with and approved by the BCUC.

BC Hydro applies the principles of ASC 980, which differs from IFRS, to reflect the impacts of the
rate-regulated environment in which BC Hydro operates (see Note 13). Generally, this results in the
deferral and amortization of costs and recoveries to allow for adjustment of future customer rates. In
the absence of rate-regulation, these amounts would otherwise be included in comprehensive income
unless recovered in rates in the year the amounts are incurred. BC Hydro capitalizes as a regulatory
asset all or part of an incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to expense or other comprehensive
income if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at least equal to the capitalized cost will result
from inclusion of that cost in allowable costs for rate-making purposes and the future rates and revenue
approved by the BCUC will permit recovery of that incurred cost. Regulatory liabilities are recognized
for certain gains or other reductions of net allowable costs for adjustment of future rates as determined
by the BCUC.

These accounting policies support BC Hydro’s rate regulation and regulatory accounts have been
established through ongoing application to, and approval by, the BCUC. When a regulatory account
has been or will be applied for, and, in management’s estimate, acceptance of deferral treatment by the
BCUC is considered probable, BC Hydro defers such costs in advance of a final decision of the
BCUC. If the BCUC subsequently denies the application for regulatory treatment, the remaining
deferred amount is recognized immediately in comprehensive income.

Revenue

Domestic revenues comprise sales to customers within the province of British Columbia and sales of
firm energy outside the province under long-term contracts that are reflected in the Company’s
domestic load requirements. Other sales outside the province are classified as trade.

Revenue is recognized at the time energy is delivered to the Company’s customers, the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably and collection is reasonably assured. Revenue is determined on the
basis of billing cycles and also includes accruals for electricity deliveries not yet billed.

Energy trading contracts that meet the definition of a financial or non-financial derivative are
accounted for at fair value whereby any realized gains and losses and unrealized changes in the fair
value are recognized in trade revenues in the period of change.

Energy trading and other contracts which do not meet the definition of a derivative are accounted for
on an accrual basis whereby the realized gains and losses are recognized as revenue as the contracts
are settled. Such contracts are considered to be settled when, for the sale of products, the significant
risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the buyer, and for the sale of services, those services are
rendered.

Finance Costs and Recoveries

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, accretion expense on provisions and other
long-term liabilities, net interest on net defined benefit obligations, interest on finance lease liabilities,
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(d)

foreign exchange losses and realized hedging instrument losses that are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. All borrowing costs are recognized using the effective interest rate method.
Finance costs exclude borrowing costs attributable to the construction of qualifying assets, which are
assets that take more than six months to prepare for their intended use.

Finance recoveries comprises income earned on sinking fund investments held for the redemption of
long-term debt, foreign exchange gains and realized hedging instrument gains that are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income, excluding energy trading contracts.

Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the respective functional currencies of BC Hydro and
its subsidiaries, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are re-translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate in effect at that date. The foreign currency gains or losses on monetary
items is the difference between the amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the
period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in the
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

For purposes of consolidation, the assets and liabilities of Powerex, whose functional currency is the
U.S. dollar, are translated to Canadian dollars using the rate of exchange in effect at the reporting date.
Revenue and expenses of Powerex are translated to Canadian dollars at exchange rates at the date of
the transactions. Foreign currency differences resulting from translation of the accounts of Powerex are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in the cumulative translation
reserve. Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to
Powerex, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future and which in
substance is considered to form part of a net investment in Powerex by BC Hydro, are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income in the cumulative translation reserve.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(i) Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment in service are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset into service. The cost of dismantling and removing an item of
property, plant and equipment and restoring the site on which it is located is estimated and
capitalized only when, and to the extent that, the Company has a legal or constructive obligation to
dismantle and remove such asset. Property, plant and equipment in service include the cost of plant
and equipment financed by contributions in aid of construction. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost
of the qualifying asset. Upon retirement or disposal, any gain or loss is recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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The Company recognizes government grants when there is reasonable assurance that any conditions
attached to the grant will be met and the grant will be received. Government grants related to assets
are deducted from the carrying amount of the related asset and recognized in profit or loss over the
life of the related asset.

Unfinished construction consists of the cost of property, plant and equipment that is under
construction or not ready for service. Costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment in
service when the constructed asset is capable of operation in a manner intended by management.

(ii) Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognized. The costs of property, plant and equipment
maintenance are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment in service are depreciated over the expected useful lives of the
assets, using the straight-line method. When major components of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant
and equipment.

The expected useful lives, in years, of the Company’s main classes of property, plant and
equipment are:

Generation 15 —100
Transmission 20 — 65
Distribution 20 — 60
Buildings 5 - 60
Equipment & Other 3-35

The expected useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed annually.

Depreciation of an item of property, plant and equipment commences when the asset is available for
use and ceases at the earlier of the date the asset is classified as held for sale and the date the asset is
derecognized.

(f) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Land rights associated with statutory rights of way acquired from the Province that have
indefinite useful lives and are not subject to amortization. Other intangible assets include California
carbon allowances which are not amortized because they are used to settle obligations arising from
carbon emissions regulations. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over their
expected useful lives on a straight line basis. These assets are tested for impairment annually or more
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frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset value may not be fully
recoverable.

The expected useful lives, in years, are as follows:

Software 2 —-10
Other 10— 20

Amortization of intangible assets commences when the asset is available for use and ceases at the
earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized.

(g) Asset Impairment
(i) Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is impairment. A financial asset is impaired if evidence indicates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an
available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in net income. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-
for-sale financial asset previously recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in
unrealized gains/losses on available-for-sale financial assets in equity is transferred to net income.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost and available-for-
sale financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognized in net income.

(ii) Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or
that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of identifiable assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generating
unit, or CGU). The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its
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fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. All of BC Hydro’s assets form one CGU for
the purposes of testing for impairment.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in net income. Impairment losses recognized
in respect of a CGU are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in the CGU on a pro-
rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at the reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Impairment reversals are recognized immediately in
net income when the recoverable amount of an asset increases above the impaired net book value,
not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net 